

The 2024 Foreign Service Annual Annuitant Newsletter



United States Department of State

Director General of the Foreign Service and Director of Global Talent

Washington, D.C. 20520

November 13, 2023

Dear Foreign Service Annuitant:

Congratulations to you and all our Foreign Service colleagues who are retiring in calendar year 2023! Thank you for your service to our nation.

Annual Retirement Ceremony

As you know, the Department usually holds an annual retirement ceremony to recognize the critical role State Department employees play in developing and implementing U.S. foreign policy. However, given the pandemic the Department had to cancel the in-person retirement ceremony for the last three years. GTM is reinitiating the annual Retirement Ceremony on December 6, 2023, for 2023 retirees and all invitations will be sent electronically. Please email RetirementCeremony@state.gov with your full name, date of retirement, and a personal email address if you are interested in receiving updated information on this event and instructions on how you may participate.

Foreign Affairs Day

The Department will recognize the 59th annual Foreign Affairs Day on May 3, 2024. Foreign Affairs Day is a great opportunity to get up to date on the Department's efforts to advance the nation's foreign policy and this year to celebrate the Foreign Service's centennial anniversary. If you wish to receive updates regarding this event, please contact us at ForeignAffairsDay@state.gov and provide your name and a personal email address.

Annuitant Newsletter and Annual Open Season

The Department of State 2024 Annuitant Newsletter contains essential information and is available electronically, allowing us to make updates in real-time so you can get the most up-to-date information you need. Annuitants can request a printed copy by sending their mailing address to FS_Newsletter@state.gov.

The 2024 Newsletter includes information on health and life insurance, taxes, and survivor benefits as well as time-sensitive information on the annual open seasons for the Federal Employees Health Benefits Program (FEHB) and the Federal Employees Dental and Vision Insurance Program (FEDVIP) that begins on Monday, November 13, 2023, and ends on Monday, December 11, 2023.

Retirement Resources

The Bureau of Global Talent Management's Office of Retirement's (GTM/RET) "RNet" internet site (https://rnet.state.gov) houses valuable resources including annuitant forms. And Annuitant Express (www.employeeexpress.gov) allows you to print a copy of Form 1099-R, update mailing address and change your federal or state tax withholding and do other self-service functions. The 2024 Annuitant Newsletter explains how to access these sites.

If you have questions about these resources, please contact our Human Resources Specialists in GTM's HR Service Center (HRSC). HRSC can provide assistance with a range of actions from changing your health benefits provider to providing advice on what to do in the event of a change in marital circumstances (i.e., death of a spouse, marriage, divorce). HRSC contact information is provided in the 2024 Annuitant Newsletter.

Annuity Supplement

Many retirees in the Foreign Service Pension System (FSPS) receive an annuity supplement that is payable until age 62 and is subject to an annual earnings test. Retirees who have reached their minimum retirement age and are under age 62, must submit a certification annually to HRSC. For 2024, the certification must be submitted by Monday, January 8, 2024; otherwise, the annuity supplement payment will be suspended. Form DS-5026, "FSPS Annuity Supplement Report," is included in the Annuitant Newsletter.

We Still Need Your Help

Finally, as Department veterans, you are our best recruiters and ambassadors. We need your help to ensure the Department remains a strong, effective institution with a diverse, capable workforce that can advance U.S. interests and values now and in the future. Sharing your stories and experiences with friends, neighbors, and your fellow citizens is the best way to raise awareness about the Department's mission and attract the next generation of diplomats and foreign affairs professionals.

Thank you for your continued contributions to the Department and to our country.

Sincerely,

Marcia S. Bernicat

Maria Semes

Table of Contents

	Page
Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) Information for 2024	1
FSPS Annuity Supplement Earnings Report	1
• Form DS 5026 (due January 8, 2024)	4
Health Benefits Open Season is November 13 through December 11, 2023	5
FEHB Family Member Verification Annual NoticeFEHB Significant Changes	6 8
 Health Benefits Election Form (SF 2809) 	20
 Instructions for Completing the SF 2809 	22
Federal Employees Dental and Vision Program (FEDVIP) Open Season is November 13 through December 11, 2023	23
Insurance Benefits	23
Temporary Continuation of Coverage (TCC)	23
 Federal Long Term Care Insurance (LTC) 	24
• Federal Employees Group Life Insurance (FEGLI)	24
Reemployed Annuitant (REA) Program	28
Limits on Reemployment of Annuitants	28
Cap on Part-Time, Temporary and Intermittent Appointments	29
• What's in the Cap	29
Important Information for Foreign Service Annuitants	30
 Review Designation of Beneficiary Forms 	30
Apply for a Retiree ID Card	31
Report Changes in Marital Status	31
Disabled Children FSDS Disabilities Particulared	32
• FSPS Disability Retirement • Report Dooths of Appuitouts, Spayage Sympiyage & Former Spayage Immediately.	32
 Report Deaths of Annuitants, Spouses, Survivors & Former Spouses Immediately Keep Your Records Updated via Annuitant Express 	32 34
 Weep Your Records Opdated via Admittant Express Understand the Tax-Free Portion of Your Annuity 	35
State Magazine	37
Foreign Service National (FSN) Emergency Relief Fund	37
American Foreign Service Association (AFSA) Dues	37
Senior Living Foundation	38
Combined Federal Campaign (CFC) Annuitant Pledge Form	39
Points of Contact	41
• The Retirement Network (RNET)	41
HR Service Center (HRSC)	41
Annuity Pay Processing Branch (ANP) State Market Branch (ANP)	41
State Magazine and USAID Publications	41
Contact Information for Offices and Other Agencies	42

COST-OF-LIVING ADJUSTMENT (COLA) INFORMATION FOR 2024

This year's Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) will be effective December 1, 2023 and payable in the annuity payment dated January 2, 2024.

Annuitants receiving benefits under the Foreign Service Retirement and Disability System (FSRDS) will receive an 3.2% COLA. Annuitants under the Foreign Service Pension System (FSPS) will receive a 2.2% COLA.

Annuitants who retired on or after January 1, 2023, will not receive the full COLA as described above. Instead, they will receive a prorated COLA based on the number of months the annuity benefits were paid before December 1, 2023.

Note: FSPS Annuitants who are receiving an annuity supplement will receive the COLA described above on the regular annuity but will not receive a COLA on the annuity supplement.

FSPS ANNUITY SUPPLEMENT EARNINGS REPORT (DS-5026)

1. The annuity supplement part of your FSPS is subject to an earnings test that begins after a retiree reaches the Minimum Retirement Age (MRA). See chart below. The earnings test is similar to that applied to Social Security benefits and uses the same annual exempt amount, as required by law in 5 U.S.C. Section 8421a. The exempt amount changes from year to year and can be found at www.ssa.gov. Your annuity supplement will be reduced \$1.00 for every \$2.00 by which your calendar year earnings exceed the exempt amount. The reduction, termination, or reinstatement of benefits will become effective January 1st of the year following the year of income reported. Refer to the following chart to find your MRA based on your year of birth.

Minimum Retirement Age (MRA) Chart

If you were born	Your MRA is
Before 1948	55 years
1948	55 years and 2 months
1949	55 years and 4 months
1950	55 years and 6 months
1951	55 years and 8 months
1952	55 years and 10 months
1953-1964	56 years
1965	56 years and 2 months
1966	56 years and 4 months
1967	56 years and 6 months
1968	56 years and 8 months
1969	56 years and 10 months
1970 or later	57 years

- 2. Refer to the chart on the next page to see which types of income are reportable for the purpose of the earnings test. **Please do not include pre-retirement salary or post-retirement annuity payments.** If you have questions, please email HRSC@state.gov or call the HR Service Center at 866-300-7419, Monday through Friday between 8:00 am and 5:00 pm, ET.
- 3. <u>VERY IMPORTANT</u>. For the Department of State to apply the earnings test to your annuity supplement, **you must submit form DS-5026 by Monday, January 8, 2024,** if you attained your MRA in 2023.
- 4. You must submit the form even if you had no earnings for 2023. Your annuity supplement will be terminated if the FSPS Annuity Supplement Report is NOT received on time to establish your eligibility and it will remain in terminated status until the form is received by HRSC, processed by the Bureau of Global Talent Management's Office of Retirement (GTM/RET), and submitted for payment to the Annuity Pay Processing Branch (ANP) in Charleston, SC.
- 5. Please provide clear and legible information. Sign and send the form by one of the following methods:

Mailing Address	Fax	Scan/Email
Department of State	843-202-3807	HRSC@state.gov
HR Service Center		
Annuitant Services		
1999 Dyess Avenue, Building E		
Charleston, SC 29405		

6. Retain copies of evidence supporting your claimed earnings in the event you are required to furnish documentation of earnings.

How To Determine Which Income to Report

Include as earnings:

- All wages from employment covered by Social Security.
- Net Income from self-employment
- All cash pay for agricultural work, domestic work in a private home, service not in the course of your employer's trade of business.
- All pay, cash, or non-cash, for work as a home worker for a non-profit organization, no matter the amount. (The Social Security \$100.00 tax does not apply.)
- All pay for work not covered by Social Security, if the work is done in the United States, including pay for:
 - Family employment
 - Work as a student, student nurse, intern, newspaper, and magazine vendor
 - Work for States or foreign governments or instrumentalities
 - Work covered by the Railroad Retirement Act

Regardless of what income is called, if it is actually wages for services you performed or net earnings from self-employment you secured, it must be included in applying the earnings test.

Do not include as earnings:

- Pensions or annuities paid as retirement income, including your FSPS benefit, or any benefits received as a survivor.
- Salary earned before retirement and/or lumpsum payment for annual leave upon retirement. This includes any separation incentives.
- Distributions from your Thrift Savings Plan (TSP) or Individual Retirement Accounts (IRA).
- Unemployment compensation.
- Gifts, insurance proceeds, inheritances, scholarships, alimony, capital gains, net business losses, prize winnings.
- Payments-in-kind for domestic service in the employer's private home, for agricultural labor, for work not in the course of the employer's trade or business, or the value of meals and lodging.
- Rentals from real estate that cannot be counted in earnings from self-employment because, for instance, you were not a real estate dealer.
- Interest and dividends not resulting from trade or business.
- Pay for military training or for jury duty.
- Payments by an employer which are reimbursements specifically for your travel expenses and which are so identified by the employer at the time of payment and/or reimbursement or allowance for moving expenses, if they are not counted as wages for Social Security purposes.

FSPS Annuity Supplement Report

P	rint Name Clearly	Employee ID or las	t four digits of SSN
Y	Year of Income	Date Received by H	IRSC (completed by HRSC)
	2023		
•	Is your annuity supplement currently reduced or terminated year? (Darken only one oval.)	because you report	ed excess earnings last
	O Yes (Please skip directly to question 3.)		
	O No (Please continue to question 2.)		
	Did you have any earnings after retirement and in the year	entered above? (Dar	ken only one oval.)
	O Yes (Please continue to question 3.)		
	O No (Please sign and return document.)		
	What were your earnings for the year entered above?		
		Dollars	Cents
	Warning: Your earnings are subject to verification with the Social S intentional false statement or willful misrepresentation is		
	U.S.C. 1001).	pumsnable by fine, in	iprisonment, or both (16
		0 1	
	Complete and return this form even if you had no earni	•	
	Failure to return this form may result in the termination	•	
•	Please do not include your salary before your date of re	tirement or any an	nuity payments.

Signature	Daytime Phone Number
E-mail address	Date: (mm/dd/yyyy)

Privacy Act Statement			
The information is sought pursuant to the Foreign Service Act (22 U.S.C. § 3901 et			
seq. and 22 U.S.C. § 4071) and E.O. 9397, as amended. 31 U.S.C. § 7701 requires any			
person doing business with the Federal government furnish a Social Security Number			
or tax identification number.			
The information solicited on this form will be used to determine your eligibility to			
continue receiving the annuity supplement and the amount of the supplement.			
The information may be shared with national, state, or local government, or the Social			
Security Administration in order to determine benefits and issue benefits under their			
programs, to obtain information necessary for determination or continuation of			
benefits under this program or to report income for tax purposes. It may also be shared			
and verified, as noted above with law enforcement agencies when they are			
investigating a violation or potential violation of civil or criminal law. More			
information on the Routine Uses for the system can found in the System of Records			
Notice, State-31, Human Resources Records.			
The collection of this information is voluntary; however, failure to provide may result			
in benefits being denied.			

DS-5026

FEDERAL EMPLOYEES' HEALTH BENEFITS OPEN SEASON MONDAY, NOVEMBER 13, 2023 TO MONDAY, DECEMBER 11, 2023

The following information concerns annuitants with current Federal Employees Health Benefits (FEHB) Program coverage. If you do not have Federal health benefits coverage, please disregard this information.

The FEHB Open Season will be held from November 13 to December 11, 2023. The annual Open Season gives federal retirees the opportunity to review their health plan choices and make changes. If you want to change your enrollment, you must submit your completed Health Benefits Election Form SF 2809 by December 11, 2023, to the HR Service Center.

During the Open Season, Annuitants who are currently enrolled in a "self only" plan and will be enrolling in a different "self-only" plan may use Annuitant Express (see page 34) to make the change in the FEHB enrollment. All other enrollment changes must be made by submitting a completed Health Benefits Election Form (SF-2809) by December 11, 2023, to the Human Resources Service Center (HRSC). Foreign Service Annuitants should not make changes using OPM's website or by mailing their SF 2809 to OPM.

Human Resources Service Center (HRSC)

Phone: 1-866-300-7419 (Toll free)

1-843-308-5539 (Outside the U.S.)

Fax: 1-843-202-3807

E-mail: <u>HRSC@State.gov</u>

Mailing Address: U.S. Department of State

HR Service Center – Annuitant Services

1999 Dyess Avenue, Building E

Charleston, SC 29405

FEHB FAMILY MEMBER VERIFICATION ANNUAL NOTICE

Federal law prescribes which family members may be covered under your Federal Employees Health Benefits (FEHB) Program plan. This annual notification from OPM and your employing agency requires you to review eligibility rules and verify that your family members are eligible to be covered under your plan. Please carefully review the following eligibility information (also available in the Family Members section of the FEHB Handbook) and ensure that all your family members are eligible to be covered. If you have family members covered by your enrollment who are no longer eligible, you must contact the **HR Service Center** to remove them immediately. We may request documentation of eligibility at any time and documentation is required if you make a change to your FEHB enrollment.

It is your responsibility to verify that covered family members are eligible and to work with the **HR Service Center** and your FEHB Carrier to remove any family members who become ineligible. In most cases ineligible family members will not be removed automatically. Not verifying the eligibility of covered family members leads to the risk of fraud and improper payments, and ultimately may result in higher premiums for the entire group. As a reminder, any intentionally false statement or willful misrepresentation, such as including an ineligible family member on your health insurance coverage, is a violation of the law punishable by a fine of not more than \$10,000 or imprisonment of not more than 5 years, or both (18 USC 1001), and may be subject to investigation.

Which family members may I cover?

Your current spouse.

By law, you cannot cover a former spouse under your enrollment in an FEHB Program plan, even if there is a court order requiring you to provide health insurance. If you are in a valid marriage or common law marriage, then your spouse is eligible for FEHB coverage. A common law marriage must be initiated in a state that recognizes common law marriages for the marriage to be considered valid.

Your children under age 26.

Your children under the age of 26 are eligible for FEHB coverage if they are your:

- Biological children,
- Legally adopted children,
- Stepchildren,
- Foster children for whom you are the primary source of financial support and with whom you have a parent-child relationship (you cannot add a foster child without approval from Office of Retirement).

Note: In the case of a stepchild, the birth certificate must list your current spouse as parent, and you must also verify your spouse's eligibility even if you are not enrolling your spouse. In most cases, your stepchild loses coverage after your divorce or annulment from, or the death of, the parent.

Your married child is eligible to be covered under your FEHB plan, but their spouse and/or children are not eligible to be covered under your enrollment.

Except as noted below, once your child reaches age 26, they are no longer eligible as a family member and must be removed from your FEHB enrollment.

Your adult child who is incapable of self-support.

Your disabled child over the age of 26 who is incapable of financially supporting themselves because of a physical or mental disability is eligible for FEHB coverage if:

- their physical or mental disability existed before the age of 26; and
- their disability is expected to continue for at least a year.

Which family member are not eligible?

- Your former spouse is not eligible once your divorce is finalized.
- Your children are no longer eligible upon their 26th birthday (unless determined to be incapable of self-support).
- Your parents are not eligible.
- Grandchildren are not eligible unless they meet the requirements to be considered a foster child as determined by the Office of Retirement.
- Domestic partners are not eligible.

What do I do if one of my family members is no longer eligible?

You must notify the **HR Service Center** within 60 days of a family member becoming ineligible. **HR Service Center** will inform your family member of their option to enroll in FEHB for themselves under Temporary Continuation of Coverage (TCC) or as a Former Spouse. In addition, you may also have the opportunity to change your plan or enrollment type.

FEHB Significant Plan Changes

Table 1 – Plans Leaving The FEHB Program

Enrollees in these terminating plans must make a positive election into another FEHB plan during Open Season or they will be enrolled in **GEHA Indemnity Benefit Plan**, **Elevate Option**, **254/256/255 Enrollment Codes** (the lowest-cost nationwide plan option for 2024 as determined by OPM).

State/ Territory	FEHB Carrier	Plan Name	2023 Enrollment Codes and Options	Location (All Counties and/or ZIP codes affected)
Arizona	Humana Health	Humana Health Plan,	Standard	Entire Service Area
		Plan, Inc.	Inc.	BF4, BF6, BF5 C74, C76, C75
		Humana CoverageFirst/	CDHP	
		Humana Value Plan	R61, R63, R62 R91, R93, R92	
			Value	
			R64, R66, R65 R94, R96, R95	•
		Humana High	HDHP	
		Deductible Health Plan	BV1, BV3, BV2 BY1, BY3, BY2	
Colorado	ado Humana Health Humana Health Plan, Plan, Inc. Inc.	High	Entire Service Area	
		Inc.	NR1, NR3, NR2 NT1, NT3, NT2	
			Standard	
			NR4, NR6, NR5 NT4, NT6, NT5	
			Basic	
			R21, R23, R22 RZ1, RZ3, RZ2	
Florida	Humana Health	Humana CoverageFirst/	CDHP	Entire Service Area
	Plan, Inc.	Humana Value Plan	MJ1, MJ3, MJ2 QP1, QP3, QP2 W91, W93, W92 X21, X23, X22 Value	
			MJ4, MJ6, MJ5 QP4, QP6, QP5 W94, W96, W95 X24, X26, X25	

State/ Territory	FEHB Carrier	Plan Name	2023 Enrollment Codes and Options	Location (All Counties and/or ZIP codes affected)
		Humana High	HDHP	
		Deductible Health Plan	A41, A43, A42 AP1, AP3, AP2 BR1, BR3, BR2 FF1, FF3, FF2	
		Humana Medical Plan,	High	
		Inc.	E21, E23, E22 EE1, EE3, EE2 EX1, EX3, EX2 LL1, LL3, LL2	
			Standard	
			E24, E26, E25 EE4, EE6, EE5 EX4, EX6, EX5 LL4, LL6, LL5	
Florida	UnitedHealthcare	UnitedHealthcare	Value	Miami area – Broward,
	Insurance Company, Inc.	Insurance Company, Inc., Choice Plus Advanced	LV1, LV3, LV2	Hendry, Martin, Mami/Dade, Monroe and Palm Beach Counties
				Orlando area – Brevard, Charlotte, Collier, Desoto, Flagler, Glades, Hardee, Highlands, Indian River, Lake, Lee, Manatee, Okeechobee, Orange, Polk, Sarasota, Seminole, St. Lucie, Sumter and Volusia Counties
				Tampa area – Charlotte, Citrus, Collier, Desoto, Glades, Hardee, Levy, Hernando, Hillsborough, Lee, Manatee, Pasco, Pinellas, Polk and Sarasota Counties
Georgia	Humana Health	Humana CoverageFirst/	CDHP	Entire Service Area
	Plan, Inc.	Humana Value Plan	AD1, AD3, AD2 LM1, LM3, LM2 S91, S93, S92	
			Value	
	·		AD4, AD6, AD5 LM4, LM6, LM5 S94, S96, S95	

State/ Territory	FEHB Carrier	Plan Name	2023 Enrollment Codes and Options	Location (All Counties and/or ZIP codes affected)
		Humana High Deductible Health Plan	HDHP AR1, AR3, AR2 AZ1, AZ3, AZ2 B21, B23, B22	
		Humana Employers Health Plan of Georgia, Inc.	Standard CB4, CB6, CB5 DG4, DG6, DG5 DN4, DN6, DN5 Basic	
			Q71, Q73, Q72 RM1, RM3, RM2 RJ1, RJ3, RJ2	
Georgia	UnitedHealthcare Insurance Company, Inc.	UnitedHealthcare Insurance Company, Inc Choice Plus Advanced	Value LV1, LV3, LV2	Atlanta area – Butts, Carroll, Clayton, Cherokee, Cobb, Coweta, Dawson, DeKalb, Douglas, Fayette, Forsythe, Fulton, Gwinnett, Haralson, Heard, Henry, Jasper, Morgan,
				Newton, Paulding, Putnam, Rockdale, Spaulding and Walton
Illinois	Humana Health Plan, Inc.	Humana CoverageFirst/ Humana Value Plan	CDHP GB1, GB3, GB2 MW1, MW3, MW2	Entire Service Area
			Value GB4, GB6, GB5 MW4, MW6, MW5	
		Humana High Deductible Health Plan	HDHP AW1, AW3, AW2 BB1, BB3, BB2	
		Humana Health Plan, Inc.	High 751, 753, 752 9F1, 9F3, 9F2	
			Standard 754, 756, 755 AB4, AB6, AB5	
			Basic AB1, AB3, AB2 RW1, RW3, RW2	

State/ Territory	FEHB Carrier	Plan Name	2023 Enrollment Codes and Options	Location (All Counties and/or ZIP codes affected)
Indiana	Humana Health Plan, Inc.	Humana CoverageFirst/ Humana Value Plan	CDHP MW1, MW3, MW2 TC1, TC3, TC2 X31, X33, X32	Entire Service Area
			Value MW4, MW6, MW5 TC4, TC6, TC5 X34, X36, X35	
		Humana High Deductible Health Plan	HDHP BB1, BB3, BB2 DT1, DT3, DT2 FZ1, FZ3, FZ2	
		Humana Health Plan, Inc.	High 751, 753, 752	
			Standard 754, 756, 755 A64, A66, A65 MH4, MH6, MH5	
	·		Basic RW1, RW3, RW2	
Indiana	Indiana University Health Plans Select	Indiana University Health Plans Select	High FS1, FS2, FS3	Blackford, Boone, Brown, Carroll, Clinton, Delaware, Fountain, Grant, Hamilton, Hendricks, Jay, Johnson, Lawrence, Marion, Monroe, Montgomery, Morgan, Orange, Owen, Putnam, Randolph, Shelby, Tippecanoe, Tipton, and White
Kansas	Aetna, Inc.	Aetna Open Access	High HA1, HA3, HA2	Kansas City area – Anderson, Allen, Atchison, Bourbon, Brown, Cherokee, Crawford, Doniphan, Douglas, Franklin,
			Standard HA4, HA6, HA5	Jackson, Jefferson, Johnson, Labette, Leavenworth, Linn, Marshall, Miami, Montgomery, Neosho, Osage, Pottawatomie, Shawnee, Wabaunsee and Wyandotte Counties

State/ Territory	FEHB Carrier	Plan Name	2023 Enrollment Codes and Options	Location (All Counties and/or ZIP codes affected)	
Kansas	Humana Health Plan, Inc.	Humana	CDHP	Entire Service Area	
		CoverageFirst/Humana Value Plan	PH1, PH3, PH2		
			Value		
		! !	PH4, PH6, PH5		
		Humana High	HDHP		
		Deductible Health Plan	BK1, BK3, BK2		
		Humana Health Plan,	Standard		
		Inc.	MS4, MS6, MS5		
Kentucky	Humana Health	Humana	CDHP	Entire Service Area	
	Plan, Inc.	CoverageFirst/Humana Value Plan	6N1, 6N3, 6N2 TC1, TC3, TC2 X31, X33, X32		
		1 1	Value		
			6N4, 6N6, 6N5 TC4, TC6, TC5 X34, X36, X35		
		Humana High	HDHP		
		Deductible Health Plan	DT1, DT3, DT2 FW1, FW3, FW2 FZ1, FZ3, FZ2		
		Humana Health Plan,	Standard		
		Inc.	MH4, MH6, MH5 MI4, MI6, MI5		
		Humana Health Plan of	Standard		
		Ohio, Inc.	Ohio, Inc.	A64, A66, A65	
			Basic		
			W61, W63, W62		
Louisiana	Humana Health	Humana Health Benefit	High	Entire Service Area	
	Plan, Inc.	Plan, Inc. Plan of Louisiana, Inc.	AE1, AE3, AE2 BC1, BC3, BC2		
			Standard		
			AE4, AE6, AE5 BC4, BC6, BC5		

State/ Territory	FEHB Carrier	Plan Name	2023 Enrollment Codes and Options	Location (All Counties and/or ZIP codes affected)
Missouri	Aetna, Inc.	Aetna Open Access	High	Kansas City area - Andrew,
			HA1, HA3, HA2	Barton, Benton, Buchanan, Caldwell, Carroll, Cass,
				Christian, Clay, Clinton, Dade, Dallas, Daviess, DeKalb, Gentry, Greene, Grundy,
			Standard	Henry, Jackson, Jasper,
			НА4, НА6, НА5	Johnson, Lafayette, Lawrence, Livingston, Newton, Pettis, Polk, Platte, Ray, Vernon and Webster Counties
Missouri	Humana Health	Humana CoverageFirst/	CDHP	Entire Service Area
	Plan, Inc.	Humana Value Plan,	PH1, PH3, PH2	
	*		Value	
			PH4, PH6, PH5	
		Humana High	HDHP	
		Deductible Health Plan	BK1, BK3, BK2	
	·	Humana Health Plan,	Standard	
		Inc.	MS4, MS6, MS5	
Ohio	AultCare Insurance Company	AultCare Insurance Company	High 3A1,3A3, 3A2	Stark, Carroll, Holmes, Tuscarawas, Wayne Counties and the Canton Metropolitan
		T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T	HDHP 3A4, 3A6, 3A5	area in Ohio
Ohio	Humana Health	Humana	CDHP	Entire Service Area
	Plan, Inc.		X31, X33, X32	
			Value	
			X34, X36, X35	
		Humana High	HDHP	
		Deductible Health Plan	DT1, DT3, DT2	
		Humana Health Plan of	Standard	
	Ohio, Inc.	Ohio, Inc.	A64, A66, A65	
			Basic	
		W61, W63, W62		

State/ Territory	FEHB Carrier	Plan Name	2023 Enrollment Codes and Options	Location (All Counties and/or ZIP codes affected)
Puerto Rico Humana Healt Plans of Puert Rico, Inc.		Humana Health Plans of	High	Entire Service Area
		Puerto Rico, Inc.	ZJ1, ZJ3, ZJ2	
Tennessee	Humana Health	Humana CoverageFirst/	CDHP	Entire Service Area
	Plan, Inc.	Humana Value Plan	TT1, TT3, TT2	
			Value	
			TT4, TT6, TT5	
		Humana High	HDHP	
		Deductible Health Plan	ER1, ER3, ER2	
		Humana Health Plan,	Standard	
		Inc.	GJ4, GJ6, GJ5	
Texas	Humana Health	Humana Health Plan of	Standard	Entire Service Area
	Plan, Inc.	Texas, Inc.	EW4, EW6, EW5 UC4, UC6, UC5 UR4, UR6, UR5 UU4, UU6, UU5	
			Basic	
			Q21, Q23, Q22 Q61, Q63, Q62 QX1, QX3, QX2 QY1, QY3, QY2	
		Humana	CDHP	
		CoverageFirst/Humana Value Plan,	T31, T33, T32 TP1, TP3, TP2 TU1, TU3, TU2 TV1, TV3, TV2	
			Value	
			T34, T36, T35 TP4, TP6, TP5 TU4, TU6, TU5 TV4, TV6, TV5	
		Humana High Deductible Health Plan	HDHP AN1, AN3, AN2 CG1, CG3, CG2 DX1, DX3, DX2 FD1, FD3, FD2	

Table 2 - Plans Reducing Service Areas and Terminating Enrollment Codes

Enrollees in these terminating enrollment codes must make a positive election into another FEHB plan during Open Season or they will be enrolled in **GEHA Indemnity Benefit Plan**, **Elevate Option**, **254/256/255 Enrollment Codes** (the lowest -cost nationwide plan option for 2024 as determined by OPM).

State	FEHB Carrier	Plan Name	Plan Option	2023 Enrollment Codes	Area Dropped (All Counties and/or ZIP codes affected)
Iowa	UnitedHealthcare Insurance Company, Inc.	UnitedHealthcare Insurance Company, Inc.	НОНР	N71, N73, N72	Entire State of Iowa
Kentucky	UnitedHealthcare Insurance Company, Inc.	UnitedHealthcare Insurance Company, Inc.	НДНР	N71, N73, N72	Entire State of Kentucky

Table 3 - Plans Terminating Options and Enrollment Codes

Enrollees in the plan's terminating option will be automatically enrolled into the plan option that is identified in the table below unless they enroll in another plan during Open Season.

State	FEHB Carrier	Plan Name	Terminating Options (end of 2023)	Terminating Enrollment Codes (end of 2023)	Automatic Enrollment Option and Codes for 2024	
Nationwide	National Association of Letter Carriers (NALC)	NALC Health Benefit Plan	Value	KM1, KM3, KM2	CDHP 324, 326, 325	
	Medical Mutual	Medical Mutual	Standard	YF4, YF6, YF5	Basic	
Ohio	of Ohio	of Ohio	WellFlex	F11, F13, F12	YF1, YF3, YF2	

Table 4 - Plans Reducing Service Areas Without Terminating Enrollment Codes

Enrollees in the areas being dropped who do not change health plans during Open Season will only have emergency services where they live, and they will have to travel to their plan's remaining service area to obtain medical care in order to receive full benefits from the plan in 2024.

State	Carrier Name	Plan Name	Plan Option	2023 Enrollment Codes	Area Dropped
California	Blue Shield of California	Blue Shield of California High Option Access+ HMO	High	SI1, SI3, SI2	Fresno, Kern, Kings, and Santa Barbara Counties
			High	651, 653, 652	Crowley, Custer,
Colorado	Kaiser Permanente - Colorado	Kaiser Permanente - Colorado	Standard	654, 656, 655	Huerfano, Las Animas, Lincoln,
			Prosper	N41, N43, N42	Morgan, and Otero Counties

Table 5 - Plans Adding New Option and Enrollment Codes

State	FEHB Carrier	Plan Name	New Option	2024 Enrollment Codes	Location (All Counties and/or ZIP codes affected)
Nationwide	Compass Rose Health Plan	Compass Rose Health Plan*	Standard	424, 426, 425	Nationwide

^{*} The is a nationwide fee-for-service plan available only to employees and annuitants of specific agencies. See the plan brochure.

Table 6 – Service Area Expansions Without New Enrollment Codes

State	FEHB Carrier	Plan Name	Plan Option	2024 Enrollment Codes	Location of Areas(Counties and/orZIP codes affected)
	Kaiser	Kaiser	High	651, 653, 652	All of Adoms Aronahaa Close
Colorado	Permanente – Colorado	Permanente - Colorado	Standard	654, 656, 655	All of Adams, Arapahoe, Clear Creek, El Paso, Elbert, Fremont, and Park Counties
	Colorado	Colorado	Prosper	N41, N43, N42	remont, and rark countes
Florida	Capital Health Plan	Capital Health Plan	High	EA1, EA3, EA2	Madison and Taylor Counties
	Health Alliance	ce Health Alliance Plan	High	521, 523, 522	Barry, Gratiot, Kent, Mason, Mecosta, Montcalm,
Michigan	Plan		Standard	GY4, GY6, GY5	Muskegon, Newaygo, Oceana, Osceola, and Ottawa Counties
South Dakota	South Dakota HealthPartners,		High	V31, V32, V33	All of Butte, Custer, Lawrence, Meade, and Pennington
Journ Danou	Inc.		Standard	V34, V36, V35	Counties

Table 7 – New Plans Entering The FEHB Program

State	FEHB Carrier	Plan Name	Plan Option	2024 New Enrollment Codes	Location of Areas (Counties and/or ZIP codes affected)
					Arlington, Clarke, Fairfax, Fauquier, Loudoun, Manassas City, Manassas Park City, Prince William, Spotsylvania, Stafford, and Warren Counties
Virginia	Sentara Health Plans	Sentara Health Plans	High	F21, F23, F22	Cities: Aldie, Alexandria, Annadale, Ashburn, Bealeton, Bentonville, Berryville, Bluemont, Boyce, Bristow, Broad Run, Brooke, Burke, Calverton, Casanova, Catharpin, Catlett, Centreville, Chantilly, Clifton, Delaplane, Dulles, Dumfries, Dunn Loring, Fairfax Station, Falls Church, Fort Belvoir, Fredericksburg, Front Royal, Ft. Myer, Gainesville, Garrisonville, Goldvein, Great Falls, Greenway, Hamilton, Hartwood, Haymarket, Herndon, Hume, Leesburg, Lincoln, Linden, Lorton, Lovettsville, Manassas, Markham, Marshall, McLean, Merrifield, Middleburg, Middletown, Midland, Millwood, Mount Vernon, Newington, Nokesville, Oakton, Occoquan, Orlean, Paeonian Springs, Paris, Partlow, Philmont, Purcellville, Quantico, Rectortown, Remington, Reston, Round Hill, Ruby, Somerville, Springfield, Sterling, Sumerduck, The Plains, Thornburg, Triangle, Upperville, Vienna, Warrenton, Waterford, West McLean, White Post and

Table 8 – Plans Changing Names

State	FEHB Carrier	Old Plan Name	New Plan Name	Enrollment Codes
37::-:-	Outing Harlth	Outine Health	Sentara Health	PG1, PG3, PG2
Virginia	Optima Health	Optima Health	Plans	PG4, PG6, PG5

Table 9 - Service Area Change - County/Zip Code (due to USPS border changes)

State	FEHB Carrier	Plan Name	Enrollment Codes and Options	2023 Zip Code	2023 Service Area	2024 Zip Code	2024 Service Area
Maryland	Kaiser Foundation Health Plan of the	Kaiser Permanente	High E31, E33, E32 Standard	20736	Calvert County	20736	Calvert County
Mid Atlan	Mid- Atlantic States, Inc.	- Mid- Atlantic States	E34, E36, E35 Prosper T71, T73, T72	20736		20758	Anne Arundel & Calvert Counties

Table 10 - Closed Plans Changing Enrollment Criteria for New Eligible Enrollment

State	FEHB Carrier	Plan Option	Enrollment Codes	New Enrollment Eligibility
Netionaldo	Notice Compass Rose	High	421, 423, 422	Enrollment open to all employees
Nationwide	Health Plan	Standard	424, 426, 425	and retirees of the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs (VA)



Health Benefits Election Form

1. Enrollee name (tast, first, middle initial) 2. Social Security Number 3. Date of birth (mm/dd/3939) 4. Sex 5. Are you married?	Part A - Enrollee and Family Member Information (for	additional family member	rs u	se a separate sheet and attach)
A B D D Price was a covered by Medicare Beneficiary Identifier Check Bit that apply. A B D D Price was covered by insurance other than Medicare? Price was a covered by insurance other than Medicare? Price was a covered by insurance other than Medicare? Price was a covered by insurance other than Medicare? Price was a covered by the covered by insurance other than Medicare? Price was a covered by the covered by insurance other than Medicare? Price was a covered by the covered by insurance other than Medicare? Price was a covered by the covered by insurance other than Medicare? Price was a covered by the covered by insurance other than Medicare? Price was a covered by the covered by the covered by insurance other than Medicare? Price was a covered by the covered	E DANGE BERNET SERVICE SERVICE DE LA PROPERTIE	And the form of the second of	SCHOOLSENS	STREET AND DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY OF THE
A B D D Price was a covered by Medicare Beneficiary Identifier Check Bit that apply. A B D D Price was covered by insurance other than Medicare? Price was a covered by insurance other than Medicare? Price was a covered by insurance other than Medicare? Price was a covered by insurance other than Medicare? Price was a covered by the covered by insurance other than Medicare? Price was a covered by the covered by insurance other than Medicare? Price was a covered by the covered by insurance other than Medicare? Price was a covered by the covered by insurance other than Medicare? Price was a covered by the covered by insurance other than Medicare? Price was a covered by the covered by the covered by insurance other than Medicare? Price was a covered by the covered				M M E Nes M No
check all that apply A B D	6. Home mailing address (including ZIP Code)		7.	Land Land Lond
9 Are you covered by insurance other than Medicare? Yes, indicate in item 10 below. No No No No No No No N	,			check all that apply.
TRICARE Other Name of other insurance:			0	
10. Indicate the type(s) of other Insurance: FEHB An FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other insurance: FEHB Ar FEHB Self Plus One or other i			7.	Are you covered by insurance other than incurate:
TRICARE Other Name of other insurance:				Yes, indicate in item 10 below. No
EHB An FEHR Self Pins One envallment covers the envallee and one eligible family member designated by the envallee. An FEHR Self and Family semblence covers the envalue and all eligible family members. No person may be covered under more than one FEHR concludes. See instructions for item 10 on page 1. 11. Email address				
1. Email address 12. Preferred telephone number 13. Name of family member (last, first, middle initial) 14. Social Security Number 15. Date of birth (mm/dd/yyyy) 16. Sex 17. Relationship code 18. Address (if different from enrollee) 19. If this family member is covered by Medicare, check all this apply 20. Medicare Beneficiary Identifier by Medicare, check all this apply 20. Medicare Beneficiary Identifier 17. Relationship code 18. Address (if different from enrollee) 19. If this family member is covered by insurance other than Medicare? 17. Relationship code 19. If this family member covered by insurance other than Medicare? 18. It this family member covered by insurance other than Medicare? 18. It this family member covered by insurance other than Medicare? 18. It this family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self June family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members. No person may be covered unider more than one EEHB enrollee. An FEHB Self June family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members. No person may be covered unider more than one EEHB enrollees. An FEHB Self June family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members of your sponse or adult child) 28. Preferred elephone number (if applicable, enter preferred phone member of your sponse or adult child) 29. Name of family member (last, first, middle initial) 26. Social Security Number 27. Date of birth (mm/dd/yyyy) 28. Sex 29. Relationship code by Medicare, check all this apply) 32. Medicare Beneficiary Identifier by Medicare, check all this apply) 32. Medicare Beneficiary Identifier by Medicare, check all this apply) 32. Medicare Beneficiary Identifier 33. Is this family member covered by insurance other than Medicare? 48. It this family member (seignated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members. No person may be covered unider more than one eligible family member				·
12. Preferred telephone number 12. Preferred telephone number 13. Name of family member (last, first, middle initial) 14. Social Security Number 15. Date of birth (mmiddly)3939 16. Sex 17. Relationship code 18. Address (if different from enrollee) 19. If this family member is covered all that apply 16. Sex 17. Relationship code 18. Address (if different from enrollee) 19. If this family member is covered by insurance other than Medicare? Yes, indicate in item 22 below. No No No No No No No N	FEHB An FEHB Self Plus One enrollment covers the enrol enrollee and all eligible family members. No person	lee and one eligible family me i may be covered under more i	mbe than	r designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the non-FEHB enrollment. See instructions for item 10 on page 1.
13. Name of family member (last, first, middle initial) 14. Social Security Number 15. Date of birth (mm/dd/yyyy) 16. Sex 17. Relationship code 18. Address (If different from envollee) 19. If this family member is covered by McGrare, check all that apply 20. Medicare Beneficiary Identifier by McGrare, check all that apply 20. Medicare Beneficiary Identifier by McGrare, check all that apply 20. Medicare Beneficiary Identifier by McGrare, check all that apply 20. Medicare Beneficiary Identifier by McGrare, check all that apply 20. Medicare Beneficiary Identifier by McGrare, check all that apply 20. Medicare Beneficiary Identifier by McGrare, check all final apply 20. Medicare Beneficiary Identifier by McGrare, check all final apply 20. Medicare Beneficiary Identifier by McGrare, check all final apply 20. Medicare Beneficiary Identifier by McGrare, check all final apply 20. Medicare Beneficiary Identifier by McGrare, check all final apply 20. Medicare Beneficiary Identifier by McGrare, check all final apply 20. Medicare Beneficiary Identifier by McGrare, check all final apply 20. Medicare Beneficiary Identifier by McGrare, check all final apply 20. Medicare Beneficiary Identifier 20. Medi	11. Email address		12.	Preferred telephone number
18. Address (if different from enrollee)				
18. Address (if different from enrollee)	12 Name of family member flast first middle initial)	14 Social Security Number	15	Date of high (mm/dd/annu) 16 Sev 17 Relationship code
18. Address (if different from enrollee)	13. Name of family member (tast, jirst, middle initial)	14. Social Security Number	13.	Date of office (minutally yyyy)
by Medicare, check all that apply				
22. Indicate the type(s) of other insurance:	18. Address (if different from enrollee)		19.	by Medicare, check all that apply.
Yes, indicate in item 22 below. No				
Indicate the type(s) of other insurance: TRICARE			21.	Is this family member covered by insurance other than Medicare?
Indicate the type(s) of other insurance:				Yes, indicate in item 22 below.
FEHB An FEHB Self Plus One enrollment covers the enrollee and one eligible family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members. No person may be covered under more than one PEHB enrollment. See instructions for tenn 10 on page 1. 23. Email address (if applicable, enter email address of your spouse or adult child) 24. Preferred telephone number (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of your spouse or adult child) 25. Name of family member (last, first, middle initial) 26. Social Security Number 27. Date of birth (mm/dd/yyyy) 28. Sex 29. Relationship code by Medicare, check all that apply. A B D 33. Is this family member is covered by insurance other than Medicare? Yes, indicate in item 34 below. An FEHB Self Plus One enrollment covers the enrollee and one eligible family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members. No person may be covered under more than one PEHB enrollment (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of your spouse or adult child) 37. Name of family member (last, first, middle initial) 38. Social Security Number 39. Date of birth (mm/dd/yyyy) 40. Sex 41. Relationship code by Medicare, check all that apply. A B D 37. Name of family member (last, first, middle initial) 38. Social Security Number 39. Date of birth (mm/dd/yyyy) 40. Sex 41. Relationship code by Medicare, check all that apply. A B D 41. Indicate the type(s) of other insurance: Policy Number: FEHB An FEHB Self Plus One enrollneent covers the enrollee and one eligible family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members (sovered by Medicare, check all that apply. A B D 42. Address (if different from enrollee) 43. If this family member is covered by insurance other than Medicare? Yes, indicate in item 46 below. No 44. Medicare Beneficiary Identifier by Medicare, check all that	22. Indicate the type(s) of other insurance:		-	
enrollee and all eligible family members. No person may be covered under more than one FEHB enrollment. See instructions for tem 10 on page 1. 23. Email address (if applicable, enter email address of your sponse or adult child) 24. Preferred tenon enumber (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of your sponse or adult child) 25. Name of family member (last, first, middle initial) 26. Social Security Number 27. Date of birth (mm/dd/yyyy) 28. Sex 29. Relationship code M F 30. Address (if different from enrollee) 31. If this family member is covered July M F 33. Is this family member covered by insurance other than Medicare? Yes, indicate in tiem 34 below. 34. Indicate the type(s) of other insurance: FEHB Other Name of other insurance: FEHB An FEHB Self Plus One enrollment covers the enrollee and one eligible family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members. No person may be covered under more than one FEHB enrollment. See instructions for item 10 on page 1. 35. Email address (if applicable, enter email address of your spouse or adult child) 36. Preferred telemon number (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of your spouse or adult child) 37. Name of family member (last, first, middle initial) 38. Social Security Number 49. Date of birth (mm/dd/yyyy) 40. Sex 41. Relationship code by Medicare, check all that apply. 40. A B D D 41. If this family member is covered by insurance other than Medicare? Yes, indicate in item 46 below.	TRICARE Other Name of other insurance:			Policy Number:
23. Email address (if applicable, enter email address of your spouse or adult child) 24. Preferred telephone number (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of your spouse or adult child) 25. Name of family member (last, first, middle initial) 26. Social Security Number 27. Date of birth (mm/dd/yyyy) 28. Sex 29. Relationship code by Medicare, check all that apply. 30. Address (if different from enrollee) 31. If this family member is covered by insurance other than Medicare? Yes, indicate the type(s) of other insurance: FEHB An FEHB Self Plus One enrollment covers the enrollee and one eligible family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment of your spouse or adult child) 33. Is this family member of enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members. No person may be covered under more than one FEHB enrollment. See instructions for ten line 10 on page 1. 34. Da D 35. Email address (if applicable, enter email address of your spouse or adult child) 36. Preferred telephone number (if applicable, enter preferred phone mumber of your spouse or adult child) 37. Name of family member (last, first, middle initial) 38. Social Security Number 40. A B D 41. Relationship code by Medicare, check all that apply. 42. Address (if different from enrollee) 43. If this family member is covered by insurance other than Medicare? Yes, indicate in item 46 below No 45. Is this family member covered by insurance other than Medicare? Yes, indicate in item 46 below No 46. Indicate the type(s) of other insurance FRICARE Other Name of other insurance: FRICARE Other Name of other insurance: FRICARE Indicate (in item 46 below No 46. Indicate the type(s) of other insurance other than Medicare? Yes, indicate in item 46 below No 46. Indicate the type(s) of other insurance other than Medicare? 47. Email address (if policable, enter preferred phone number of than one FEHB enrollment. See instructions for item 10 on page 1. 48. Preferred tel	FEHB An FEHB Self Plus One enrollment covers the enrol	lee and one eligible family me	mbe	er designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the
25. Name of family member (last, first, middle initial) 26. Social Security Number 27. Date of birth (mm/dd/yyyy) 27. Date of birth (mm/dd/yyyy) 28. Sex 29. Relationship code by Medicare, check all that apply and be sufficiently member covered by insurance other than Medicare? 28. Sex 29. Relationship code by Medicare, check all that apply and by Medicare, check all that apply and by Medicare, check all that apply and be sufficiently member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members. No person may be covered under more than one FEHB enrollment. See instructions for item 10 on page 1. 38. Email address (if applicable, enter email address of your spouse or adult child) 39. Preferred telephone number (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of your spouse or adult child) 30. Name of family member (last, first, middle initial) 31. If this family member overed by insurance other than Medicare? 31. If this family member overed by insurance other than Medicare? 31. If this family member covered by insurance other than Medicare? 32. Date of birth (mm/dd/yyyy) 33. Is this family member covered by insurance other than Medicare? 34. If this family member covered by insurance other than Medicare? 35. Is this family member covered by insurance other than Medicare? 36. If this family member covered by insurance other than Medicare? 37. Is this family member covered by insurance other than Medicare? 38. It this family member overed by insurance other than Medicare? 39. Date of birth (mm/dd/yyyy) 40. Sex 41. Relationship code by Medicare, check all that apply. 40. Indicate the type(s) of other insurance. 41. Fifth Self plus One enrollment covers the enrollee and one eligible family member designated by the e				
25. Name of family member (last, first, middle initial) 26. Social Security Number 27. Date of birth (mm/dd/yyyy) 28. Sex 29. Relationship code M M F M Set 19 M M Set 20 Medicare Beneficiary Identifier by Medicare, check all that apply 32. Medicare Beneficiary Identifier by Medicare, check all that apply 33. Is this family member covered by insurance other than Medicare? TRICARE Other Name of other insurance: FIEHB An FEHB Self Plus One enrollment covers the enrollee and one eligible family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members of your spouse or adult child) 36. Preferred telephone number (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of your spouse or adult child) 37. Name of family member (last, first, middle initial) 38. Social Security Number 43. If this family member is covered by insurance other than Medicare? 44. Address (if different from enrollee) 45. Is this family member covered by insurance other than Medicare? Yes, indicate in item 46 below No 46. Indicate the type(s) of other insurance: FIEHB An FEHB Self Plus One enrollment covers the enrollee and one eligible family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family member. No person may be covered under more than one FEHB enrollment. See instructions for tem 10 on page 1. 47. Email address of applicable, enter preferred phone number of 44. Medicare Beneficiary Identifier on page 1. 48. Preferred telephone number (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of 44. Medicare Beneficiary Identifier by Medicare, check all that apply. 48. The FEHB Self Plus One enrollment covers the enrollee and one eligible family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members. No person may be covered under more than one FEHB enrollment. See instructions for tem 10 on page 1.	23. Email address (if applicable, enter email address of your spot	ise or adult child)	24.	
30. Address (if different from enrollee) 31. If this family member is covered by Medicare, check all that apply, 2 33. Is this family member covered by insurance other than Medicare? Yes, indicate in item 34 below. 34. Indicate the type(s) of other insurance: TRICARE Other Name of other insurance: FEHB An FEHB Self Plus One enrollment covers the enrollee and one eligible family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and one family enrollment in thing. 35. Email address (if applicable, enter email address of your spouse or adult child) 36. Preferred telephone number (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of your spouse or adult child) 37. Name of family member (last, first, middle initial) 38. Social Security Number 40. Sex 41. Relationship code 42. Address (if different from enrollee) 43. If this family member is covered by insurance other than Medicare? Yes, indicate in item 46 below. No 44. Medicare Beneficiary Identifier No 45. Is this family member covered by insurance other than Medicare? Yes, indicate in item 46 below. No 46. Indicate the type(s) of other insurance: FEHB An FEHB Self Plus One enrollment covers the enrollee and one eligible family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members. No person may be covered under more than one FEHB enrollment. See instructions for item 10 on page 1.				,
31. If this family member is covered by Medicare, check all that apply. A B D D	25. Name of family member (last, first, middle initial)	Social Security Number	27.	Date of birth (mm/dd/yyyy) 28. Sex 29. Relationship code
by Medicaré, check all that apply. A B D 33. Is this family member covered by insurance other than Medicare? Yes, indicate the type(s) of other insurance: FEHB An FEHB Self Plus One enrollment covers the emollee and one eligible family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members. No person may be covered under more than one FEHB enrollment. See instructions for item 10 on page 1. 35. Email address (if applicable, enter email address of your spouse or adult child) 36. Preferred telephone number (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of your spouse or adult child) 37. Name of family member (last, first, middle initial) 38. Social Security Number 39. Date of birth (mm/dd/yyyy) 40. Sex 41. Relationship code by Medicare, check all that apply A B D 45. Is this family member is covered by insurance other than Medicare? Yes, indicate in item 46 below. No 46. Indicate the type(s) of other insurance: FEHB An FEHB Self Plus One enrollment covers the enrollee and one eligible family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members. No person may be covered under more than one FEHB enrollments for item 10 on page 1. 47. Email address (if applicable, enter enail address of your spouse or adult child) 48. Ferreit elephone number of (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of 44. 49. Ferreit elephone number of fire more or adult child on page 1.				мПг
34. Indicate the type(s) of other insurance: TRICARE Other Name of other insurance: FEHB An FEHB Self Plus One enrollment covers the enrollee and one eligible family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and one eligible family member than one FEHB enrollment. See insurance in item 34 below. 36. Preferred telephone number (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of your spouse or adult child) 37. Name of family member (last, first, middle initial) 38. Social Security Number 39. Date of birth (mm/dd/yyyy) 40. Sex 41. Relationship code by Medicare, check all that apply Medicare Beneficiary Identifier by Medicare, check all that apply Medicare designated by the enrollee in item 46 below. No 46. Indicate the type(s) of other insurance TRICARE Other Name of other insurance: FEHB An FEHB Self Plus One enrollment covers the enrollee and one eligible family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members. No person may be covered under more than one FEHB enrollment. See instructions for item 10 on page 1. 47. Email address (if applicable, enter email address of your spouse or adult child) 48. Preferred telephone number designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members. No person may be covered under more than one FEHB enrollment for item 10 on page 1.	30. Address (if different from enrollee)		31.	If this family member is covered 32. Medicare Beneficiary Identifier
33. Is this family member covered by insurance other than Medicare? Yes, indicate in item 34 below. No 34. Indicate the type(s) of other insurance: TRICARE Other Name of other insurance: FEHB An FEHB Self Plus One enrollment covers the enrollee and one eligible family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members. No person may be covered under more than one FEHB enrollment. See instructions for item 10 on page 1. 35. Email address (if applicable, enter email address of your spouse or adult child) 36. Preferred telephone number (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of your spouse or adult child) 37. Name of family member (last, first, middle initial) 38. Social Security Number 39. Date of birth (mm/dd/yyyy) 40. Sex 41. Relationship code by Medicare, check all that apply. A B D 45. Is this family member is covered by insurance other than Medicare? Yes, indicate in item 46 below. No 46. Indicate the type(s) of other insurance: FEHB An FEHB Self Plus One enrollment covers the enrollee and one eligible family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members of your spouse or adult child) 48. Preferred telephone number (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of adult child) 49. Preferred telephone number (if applicable, and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members of adult child) 49. Preferred telephone number (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of adult child) 49. Preferred telephone number (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of adult child)				
34. Indicate the type(s) of other insurance: TRICARE Other Name of other insurance: FEHB An FEHB Self Plus One enrollment covers the enrollee and one eligible family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members. No person may be covered under more than one FEHB enrollment. See instructions for item 10 on page 1. 35. Email address (if applicable, enter email address of your spouse or adult child) 36. Preferred telephone number (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of your spouse or adult child) 37. Name of family member (last, first, middle initial) 38. Social Security Number 39. Date of birth (mm/dd/yyyy) 40. Sex 41. Relationship code by Medicare, check all that apply. 43. If this family member is covered by Medicare, check all that apply. 44. Medicare Beneficiary Identifier 45. Is this family member covered by insurance other than Medicare? Yes, indicate in item 46 below. No 46. Indicate the type(s) of other insurance: FEHB An FEHB Self Plus One enrollment covers the enrollee and one eligible family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members. No person may be covered under more than one FEHB enrollment. See instructions for item 10 on page 1. 47. Email address (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of 48. Preferred telephone number (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of the profit one feHB enrollment. See instructions for item 10 on page 1.			33.	
34. Indicate the type(s) of other insurance: TRICARE Other Name of other insurance: Policy Number: FEHB An FEHB Self Plus One enrollment covers the enrollee and one eligible family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members. No person may be covered under more than one FEHB enrollment. See instructions for item 10 on page 1. 35. Email address (if applicable, enter email address of your spouse or adult child) 36. Preferred telephone number (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of your spouse or adult child) 37. Name of family member (last, first, middle initial) 38. Social Security Number 40. Address (if different from enrollee) 41. Relationship code by Medicare, check all that apply. 42. Address (if different from enrollee) 43. If this family member is covered by insurance other than Medicare? 44. Medicare Beneficiary Identifier 45. Is this family member covered by insurance other than Medicare? TRICARE Other Name of other insurance: Policy Number: Polic				
TRICARE Other Name of other insurance: Policy Number: FEHB An FEHB Self Plus One enrollment covers the enrollee and one eligible family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members. No person may be covered under more than one FEHB enrollment. See instructions for item 10 on page 1. 36. Email address (if applicable, enter email address of your spouse or adult child) 37. Name of family member (last, first, middle initial) 38. Social Security Number 39. Date of birth (mm/dd/yyyy) 40. Sex 41. Relationship code by Medicare, check all that apply A B D 45. Is this family member covered by insurance other than Medicare? 46. Indicate the type(s) of other insurance TRICARE Other Name of other insurance: Policy Number: Policy Nu	24. I. J.			Yes, indicate in item 34 below.
FEHB An FEHB Self Plus One enrollment covers the enrollee and one eligible family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members. No person may be covered under more than one FEHB enrollment. See instructions for item 10 on page 1. 36. Preferred telephone number (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of your spouse or adult child) 37. Name of family member (last, first, middle initial) 38. Social Security Number 39. Date of birth (mm/dd/yyyy) 40. Sex 41. Relationship code by Medicare, check all that apply. 42. Address (if different from enrollee) 43. If this family member is covered by Medicare Beneficiary Identifier by Medicare, check all that apply. 44. Medicare Beneficiary Identifier Yes, indicate in item 46 below. No 46. Indicate the type(s) of other insurance: FEHB An FEHB Self Plus One enrollment covers the enrollee and one eligible family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members. No person may be covered under more than one FEHB enrollment. See instructions for item 10 on page 1. 47. Email address (if applicable, enter email address of your spouse or adult child) 48. Preferred telephone number (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of the nu				Policy Number
enrollee and all eligible family members. No person may be covered under more than one FEHB enrollment. See instructions for item 10 on page 1. 36. Preferred telephone number (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of your spouse or adult child) 37. Name of family member (last, first, middle initial) 38. Social Security Number 43. If this family member is covered by Medicare, check all that apply. 44. Medicare Beneficiary Identifier 45. Is this family member covered by insurance other than Medicare? Yes, indicate in item 46 below. 46. Indicate the type(s) of other insurance: TRICARE Other Name of other insurance: TRICARE Other Name of other insurance: FEHB An FEHB Self Plus One enrollment covers the enrollee and one eligible family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members. No person may be covered under more than one FEHB enrollment. See instructions for item 10 on page 1. 47. Email address (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of 44). Preferred telephone number (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of 45).			mho	The state of the s
37. Name of family member (last, first, middle initial) 38. Social Security Number 39. Date of birth (mm/dd/yyyy) 40. Sex 41. Relationship code 42. Address (if different from enrollee) 43. If this family member is covered by Medicare, check all that apply A B D 45. Is this family member covered by insurance other than Medicare? Yes, indicate in item 46 below. No 46. Indicate the type(s) of other insurance TRICARE Other Name of other insurance: Policy Number: FEHB An FEHB Self Plus One enrollment covers the enrollee and one eligible family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members. No person may be covered under more than one FEHB enrollment. See instructions for item 10 on page 1. 47. Email address (if applicable, enter email address of your spouse or adult child) 48. Preferred telephone number (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of	enrollee and all eligible family members. No person	may be covered under more	than	one FEHB enrollment. See instructions for item 10 on page 1.
37. Name of family member (last, first, middle initial) 38. Social Security Number 39. Date of birth (mm/dd/yyyy) 40. Sex 41. Relationship code 42. Address (if different from enrollee) 43. If this family member is covered by Medicare Beneficiary Identifier by Medicare, check all that apply. A B D 45. Is this family member covered by insurance other than Medicare? Yes, indicate in item 46 below. No 46. Indicate the type(s) of other insurance TRICARE Other Name of other insurance: FEHB An FEHB Self Plus One enrollment covers the enrollee and one eligible family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members. No person may be covered under more than one FEHB enrollment. See instructions for item 10 on page 1. 47. Email address (if applicable, enter email address of your spouse or adult child) 48. Preferred telephone number (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of	35. Email address (if applicable, enter email address of your spou	se or adult child)	36.	Preferred telephone number (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of
42. Address (if different from enrollee) 43. If this family member is covered by Medicare, check all that apply. A B D 45. Is this family member covered by insurance other than Medicare? Yes, indicate in item 46 below. No 46. Indicate the type(s) of other insurance TRICARE Other Name of other insurance: FEHB An FEHB Self Plus One enrollment covers the enrollee and one eligible family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members. No person may be covered under more than one FEHB enrollment. See instructions for item 10 on page 1. 47. Email address (if applicable, enter email address of your spouse or adult child) 48. Preferred telephone number (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of				your spouse or adult child)
42. Address (if different from enrollee) 43. If this family member is covered by Medicare, check all that apply. A B D 45. Is this family member covered by insurance other than Medicare? Yes, indicate in item 46 below. No 46. Indicate the type(s) of other insurance TRICARE Other Name of other insurance: FEHB An FEHB Self Plus One enrollment covers the enrollee and one eligible family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members. No person may be covered under more than one FEHB enrollment. See instructions for item 10 on page 1. 47. Email address (if applicable, enter email address of your spouse or adult child) 48. Preferred telephone number (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of	37 Name of family member (last, first, middle initial)	38. Social Security Number	39.	Date of birth (mm/dd/yyyy) 40. Sex 41. Relationship code
42. Address (if different from enrollee) 43. If this family member is covered by Medicare, check all that apply. A B D 44. Medicare Beneficiary Identifier 45. Is this family member covered by insurance other than Medicare? Yes, indicate in item 46 below. No 46. Indicate the type(s) of other insurance TRICARE Other Name of other insurance: FEHB An FEHB Self Plus One enrollment covers the enrollee and one eligible family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members. No person may be covered under more than one FEHB enrollment. See instructions for item 10 on page 1. 47. Email address (if applicable, enter email address of your spouse or adult child) 48. Preferred telephone number (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of	, , , , , , , ,			
by Medicaré, check all that apply. A B D 45. Is this family member covered by insurance other than Medicare? Yes, indicate in item 46 below. No TRICARE Other Name of other insurance: FEHB An FEHB Self Plus One enrollment covers the enrollee and one eligible family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members. No person may be covered under more than one FEHB enrollment. See instructions for item 10 on page 1. Email address (if applicable, enter email address of your spouse or adult child) A B D 45. Is this family member covered by insurance other than Medicare? Policy Number: Policy Number: FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and one eligible family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members of adult child) 48. Preferred telephone number (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of	42 Address (if lifferent from annullar)		43	
45. Is this family member covered by insurance other than Medicare? Yes, indicate in item 46 below. No TRICARE Other Name of other insurance: FEHB An FEHB Self Plus One enrollment covers the enrollee and one eligible family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members. No person may be covered under more than one FEHB enrollment. See instructions for item 10 on page 1. Email address (if applicable, enter email address of your spouse or adult child) 48. Preferred telephone number (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of	42. Address (ij aijjereni from enrollee)		13.	by Medicare, check all that apply.
46. Indicate the type(s) of other insurance TRICARE Other Name of other insurance: FEHB An FEHB Self Plus One enrollment covers the enrollee and one eligible family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members. No person may be covered under more than one FEHB enrollment. See instructions for item 10 on page 1. 47. Email address (if applicable, enter email address of your spouse or adult child) 48. Preferred telephone number (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of			1.5	
46. Indicate the type(s) of other insurance TRICARE Other Name of other insurance: FEHB An FEHB Self Plus One enrollment covers the enrollee and one eligible family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members. No person may be covered under more than one FEHB enrollment. See instructions for item 10 on page 1. 47. Email address (if applicable, enter email address of your spouse or adult child) 48. Preferred telephone number (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of			45.	Is this family member covered by insurance other than Medicare?
TRICARE Other Name of other insurance: FEHB An FEHB Self Plus One enrollment covers the enrollee and one eligible family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members. No person may be covered under more than one FEHB enrollment. See instructions for item 10 on page 1. Email address (if applicable, enter email address of your spouse or adult child) 48. Preferred telephone number (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of	8			Yes, indicate in item 46 below. No
FEHB An FEHB Self Plus One enrollment covers the enrollee and one eligible family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members. No person may be covered under more than one FEHB enrollment. See instructions for item 10 on page 1. 47. Email address (if applicable, enter email address of your spouse or adult child) 48. Preferred telephone number (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of	46. Indicate the type(s) of other insurance			
FEHB An FEHB Self Plus One enrollment covers the enrollee and one eligible family member designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the enrollee and all eligible family members. No person may be covered under more than one FEHB enrollment. See instructions for item 10 on page 1. 47. Email address (if applicable, enter email address of your spouse or adult child) 48. Preferred telephone number (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of	TRICARE Other Name of other insurance:			
47. Email address (if applicable, enter email address of your spouse or adult child) 48. Preferred telephone number (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of	TELED An FEHR Salf Plus One enrollment covers the enro	llee and one eligible family me	embe	er designated by the enrollee. An FEHB Self and Family enrollment covers the
your spouse or adult child)	enrollee and all eligible family members. No person	n may be covered under more	than 48	Preferred telephone number (if applicable, enter preferred phone number of
	The Email address ty applicable, effect chian address by your spot	ar an anni vinnaj		your spouse or adult child)

(Continued on the reverse)

Standard Form 2809 Revised November 2019

Enrollee name:		Date of birth:	
Part B - FEHB Plan You Are Curr	ently Enrolled In (if applicable)	Part C - FEHB Plan You Are Enrolling In o	or Changing To
1. Plan name 2. Enrollment code		1. Plan name	2. Enrollment code
Part D - Event That Permits You To 1. Event code 2A	Enroll, Change, or Cancel (see page 6) 2. Date of event 11/13/2023	Part E - Election NOT to Enroll (Employees Companies of the NOT want to enroll in the FEHB Program. My signature in Part H certifies that I have information on page 3 regarding this election.	ve read and understand the
Part F - Cancellation of FEHB I CANCEL my enrollment. My signature in Part H certifies information on page 3 regarding	that I have read and understand the cancellation of enrollment.	Part G - Suspension of FEHB (Annuitants/F I SUSPEND my enrollment. My signature in Part H certifies that I have information on page 4 regarding suspensions.)	ve read and understand the
Part H - Signature WARNING: Any intentionally false state. \$10,000 or imprisonment of not more that		ntation relative thereto is a violation of the law punis	hable by a fine of not more than
1. Your signature (do not print)		2. Date (mm/da	Vyyyy)
Part I -To be completed by agency REMARKS	or reurement system		
1. Date received (mm/dd/yyyy)	2. Effective date of action (a) 01/01/2024	3. Personnel telephone number (866) 300-7419	г
Name and address of agency or retirement system		5. Authorizing official (please	e print)
		6. Signature of authorized age	ncy official
7. Payroll office number 19-00-0001	Payroll office contact (pl Payroll Customer Su		

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE SF 2809

Information about the FEHB Program can be found on OPM's website at: https://www.opm.gov/healthcare-insurance/healthcare/plan-information/plans/. The SF-2809 can also be accessed on OPM's website at https://www.opm.gov/forms/pdf fill/sf2809.pdf.

Part A — Enrollee and Family Member Information.

- Item 5. If you are separated but not divorced, you are still married.
- Item 7. If you have Medicare, show which Parts you have. Also indicate whether you have prescription drug coverage under the Medicare Part D program.
- Item 9. If you have other group health insurance (private, state, Medicaid, CHAMPVA), check the box.
- Item 10. Check the appropriate block. If other, write the name of any other insurance you have. TRICARE is a health care program for active duty and retired members of the uniformed services, their families, and survivors. This includes TRICARE for Life for members 65 and over.
- Items 13, 25, 37. Complete information for family members **only if your enrollment is for Self Plus One or Self and Family**. (If you need extra space for additional family members, list them on a separate sheet and attach.) If a family member has Medicare, show which parts he/she has on the line with his/her name.
- Items 17, 29, 41. Provide the code that indicates the relationship of each eligible family member to you.

CODE	Family Relationship
01	Spouse
19	Child under age 26
09	Adopted Child under age 26
17	Stepchild under age 26
10	Foster Child under age 26
99	Disabled child age 26 or older incapable of self-support because of a
	physical or mental disability that began before age 26.

Part F — Cancellation of FEHB

Generally, you cannot reenroll as an annuitant unless you are continuously covered as a family member under another person's enrollment in the FEHB Program during the period between your cancellation and reenrollment. The HR Service Center can advise you on events that allow eligible annuitants to reenroll. If you cancel your enrollment because you are covered under another FEHB enrollment, you can reenroll from 31 days before through 60 days after you lose that coverage under the other enrollment. If you cancel your enrollment for any other reason, you cannot later reenroll, and you and any family members previously covered by your enrollment are not entitled to a 31–day temporary extension of coverage or are not entitled to convert to an individual policy.

Part G — Suspension of FEHB

Place an "X" in the box only if you are an annuitant or former spouse and wish to suspend your FEHB enrollment. Also enter your present enrollment code in Part B. You may suspend your FEHB enrollment because you are enrolling in one of the following programs:

- ♦ A Medicare HMO or Medicare Advantage plan,
- Medicaid or similar State-sponsored program of medical assistance for the needy,
- ◆ TRICARE (including Uniformed Services Family Health Plan or TRICARE for Life), or
- ♦ CHAMPVA or
- ♦ Peace Corps

You can re-enroll in the FEHB Program if your other coverage ends. If your coverage ends *involuntarily*, you can reenroll 31 days before through 60 days after loss of coverage. If your coverage ends *voluntarily* because you disenroll, you can reenroll during the next open season. You must submit documentation of eligibility for coverage under the non-FEHB Program to the HR Service Center with your SF-2809.

FEDERAL EMPLOYEES DENTAL AND VISION PROGRAM (FEDVIP)

The Federal Employees Dental and Vision Insurance Program (FEDVIP) offers supplemental dental and vision benefits and is available to annuitants who are eligible to enroll in the FEHB Program. It does not matter if the annuitant is actually enrolled in FEHB – eligibility is the key. Unlike FEHB, there is no five-year requirement to continue coverage into retirement. Premiums vary by plan and by enrollment type (Self, Self + One, and Self + Family). More information is available at: https://www.opm.gov/healthcare-insurance/dental-vision.

Eligible individuals may enroll during the upcoming **Open Season, November 13, 2023, through December 11, 2023,** during subsequent annual Open Seasons or after a qualifying life event that permits enrollment outside of open season. <u>Enrollment continues automatically</u> from year to year, including when enrollees retire. For the upcoming Open Season, you can enroll, change or cancel your FEDVIP enrollment using the website (https://www.benefeds.com/) or by calling 1-877-888-3337, no later than **December 11, 2023. You cannot enroll in, make changes, or cancel your FEDVIP enrollment using a SF-2809. You must contact BENEFEDS directly**. The HR Service Center and the Annuity Pay Processing Branch <u>cannot</u> make changes to your account on your behalf.

INSURANCE BENEFITS

TEMPORARY CONTINUATION OF HEALTH COVERAGE (TCC)

Certain individuals who lose eligibility to participate in the FEHB program become eligible to continue their FEHB coverage on a temporary basis. This law applies to children of FEHB enrollees who lose their coverage when reaching age 26, and certain former spouses who would not otherwise be eligible to continue FEHB enrollment. Be advised that a surviving spouse who is not entitled to a survivor annuity is also not eligible to participate in TCC.

To acquire TCC, one must elect coverage within 60 days of the event (or 60 days from the notification from the employing office, whichever is later) which causes the loss of coverage (e.g., the date of divorce or a child's 26th birthday) and submit Form SF-2809 to the HR Service Center. The premium for those who

acquire temporary FEHB coverage will be higher than the regular premium for FEHB enrollments because it will include both the employee's and government's share of the cost of the enrollment, plus a 2% administrative fee. For more information, please consult OPM's website, https://www.opm.gov/healthcare-insurance/healthcare/temporary-continuation-of-coverage. Form SF-2809 is included in this Newsletter.

FEDERAL LONG TERM CARE INSURANCE PROGRAM

The Federal Long Term Care Insurance Program (LTCIP) pays benefits for services that individuals may need if they are unable to care for themselves because of an extended illness or injury or due to an age-related disease such as Alzheimer's. LTCIP can provide broad, flexible benefits for nursing home care, care in an assisted living facility, in-home care, adult day care, hospice care, and more.

More information, including current premiums, can be obtained by accessing the LTCIP website: http://www.ltcfeds.com/. To speak to a certified long-term care insurance specialist, call: 1-800-LTC-FEDS (1-800-582-3337) 8 am to 6 pm EST. You must contact LTCIP directly. The HR Service Center and the Annuity Pay Processing Branch cannot make changes to your account on your behalf.

FEDERAL EMPLOYEES GROUP LIFE INSURANCE (FEGLI)

The following information concerns annuitants with existing FEGLI coverage. If you do not have FEGLI coverage, please disregard this information. Please note that you may not elect any new coverage after retirement. You may only decrease coverage.

If you were eligible to continue your FEGLI enrollment when you retired, you selected basic coverage or basic coverage plus additional coverage under options A, B or C. [The Basic Insurance Amount (BIA) is the amount of your salary on the date you retired, rounded up to the nearest \$1,000, plus \$2,000.] The amount of Basic insurance in force as an annuitant may start to reduce when you reach age 65 depending on the election you made at the time you retired or following a reduction option selected after retirement. Once you retire you cannot increase your coverage, but you can reduce it. This assumes that you have not assigned, i.e., transferred ownership of your life insurance, to another party. If you have assigned to another party, you cannot make any changes in your coverage.

If you cancel your Basic insurance coverage, you will cancel all of your coverage. You must continue basic coverage to continue optional insurance coverage. When you retired, you had three options:

- Option A added \$10,000 to the amount of Basic insurance in force.
- Option B added up to five multiples of your salary on the date you retired rounded up to the higher thousand dollars. This option may also start to reduce at age 65 depending on your election.
- Option C added coverage only for family members. You could have purchased up to five multiples of \$5,000 each for a maximum benefit of \$25,000 for your spouse, and up to five multiples of \$2,500 each for a maximum benefit of \$12,500 for each eligible dependent child. This option may also start to reduce at age 65 depending on your election.

If you do not know what type of coverage you have selected, you can send your query to the HR Service Center at HRSC@state.gov, and they will look up your life insurance coverage. Additionally, you can obtain your FEGLI code from Annuitant Express on www.employeeexpress.gov. The following chart lists the FEGLI codes and the definition of each code's coverage.

FEGLI Coverage Code	Definition
A0	Ineligible
В0	Waived
C0	Basic only
D0	Basic + Option A
E1	Basic + Option C (1x)
E2	Basic + Option C (2x)
E3	Basic + Option C $(3x)$
E4	Basic + Option C (4x)
E5	Basic + Option C (5x)
F1	Basic + Option A + Option C (1x)
F2	Basic + Option A + Option C (2x)
F3	Basic + Option A + Option C (3x)
F4	Basic + Option A + Option C (4x)
F5	Basic + Option A + Option C (5x)
GO	Basic + Option B (1x)
НО	Basic + Option B (1x) + Option A
I1	Basic + Option B $(1x)$ + Option C $(1x)$
I2	Basic + Optidon B $(1x)$ + Option C $(2x)$
I3	Basic + Option B $(1x)$ + Option C $(3x)$
I4	Basic + Option B $(1x)$ + Option C $(4x)$
I5	Basic + Option B $(1x)$ + Option C $(5x)$
J1	Basic + Option B $(1x)$ + Option A + Option C $(1x)$
J2	Basic + Option B $(1x)$ + Option A + Option C $(2x)$
J3	Basic + Option B $(1x)$ + Option A + Option C $(3x)$
J4	Basic + Option B $(1x)$ + Option A + Option C $(4x)$
J5	Basic + Option B $(1x)$ + Option A + Option C $(5x)$
КО	Basic + Option B (2x)
LO	Basic + Option B $(2x)$ + Option A
M1	Basic + Option B $(2x)$ + Option C $(1x)$
M2	Basic + Option B $(2x)$ + Option C $(2x)$
M3	Basic + Option B $(2x)$ + Option C $(3x)$
M4	Basic + Option B $(2x)$ + Option C $(4x)$
M5	Basic + Option B $(2x)$ + Option C $(5x)$
N1	Basic + Option B $(2x)$ + Option A + Option C $(1x)$
N2	Basic + Option B $(2x)$ + Option A + Option C $(2x)$
N3	Basic + Option B $(2x)$ + Option A + Option C $(3x)$
N4	Basic + Option B $(2x)$ + Option A + Option C $(4x)$

FEGLI Coverage Code	Definition
N5	Basic + Option B (2x) + Option A + Option C (5x)
90	Basic + Option B (3x)
PO	Basic + Option B (3x) + Option A
Q1	Basic + Option B $(3x)$ + Option C $(1x)$
Q2	Basic + Option B $(3x)$ + Option C $(2x)$
Q3	Basic + Option B $(3x)$ + Option C $(3x)$
Q4	Basic + Option B $(3x)$ + Option C $(4x)$
Q5	Basic + Option B $(3x)$ + Option C $(5x)$
R1	Basic + Option B $(3x)$ + Option A + Option C $(1x)$
R2	Basic + Option B $(3x)$ + Option A + Option C $(2x)$
R3	Basic + Option B $(3x)$ + Option A + Option C $(3x)$
R4	Basic + Option B $(3x)$ + Option A + Option C $(4x)$
R5	Basic + Option B $(3x)$ + Option A + Option C $(5x)$
SO	Basic + Option B (4x)
ТО	Basic + Option B $(4x)$ + Option A
U1	Basic + Option B $(4x)$ + Option C $(1x)$
U2	Basic + Option B $(4x)$ + Option C $(2x)$
U3	Basic + Option B $(4x)$ + Option C $(3x)$
U4	Basic + Option B $(4x)$ + Option C $(4x)$
U5	Basic + Option B $(4x)$ + Option C $(5x)$
V1	Basic + Option B $(4x)$ + Option A + Option C $(1x)$
V2	Basic + Option B $(4x)$ + Option A + Option C $(2x)$
V3	Basic + Option B $(4x)$ + Option A + Option C $(3x)$
V4	Basic + Option B $(4x)$ + Option A + Option C $(4x)$
V5	Basic + Option B $(4x)$ + Option A + Option C $(5x)$
WO	Basic + Option B (5x)
XO	Basic + Option B $(5x)$ + Option A
Y1	Basic + Option B $(5x)$ + Option C $(1x)$
Y2	Basic + Option B $(5x)$ + Option C $(2x)$
Y3	Basic + Option B $(5x)$ + Option C $(3x)$
Y4	Basic + Option B $(5x)$ + Option C $(4x)$
Y5	Basic + Option B $(5x)$ + Option C $(5x)$
Z1	Basic + Option B $(5x)$ + Option A + Option C $(1x)$
Z2	Basic + Option B $(5x)$ + Option A + Option C $(2x)$
Z3	Basic + Option B $(5x)$ + Option A + Option C $(3x)$
Z4	Basic + Option B $(5x)$ + Option A + Option C $(4x)$
Z5	Basic + Option B $(5x)$ + Option A + Option C $(5x)$

To obtain the value of your FEGLI coverage, please contact OPM. There are two ways to access your FEGLI coverage information:

- 1. E-mail retire@opm.gov to request that your Verification of Life Insurance (VOLI) be mailed to you. Be sure to include your retirement claim number (CSI/CSA/CSF) in your email. You can find your CSI number on your SF-2820 FEGLI Certification of Insured Employee's Retirement Status. Please contact the HR Service Center at HRSC@state.gov if you need help finding your CSI number.
- 2. Call 1-888-767-6738 to request that your VOLI be mailed to you. The phone lines are open Monday through Friday 7:40 am to 5:00 pm ET. The phone lines can get extremely busy, so we recommend calling early in the morning or late in the evening when the lines are less busy. Have your retirement claim number (CSI) or social security number handy.

Your FEGLI Coverage after Age 65

Basic Insurance: At retirement, you selected the Basic Insurance Amount (BIA) you wanted to continue after age 65 based on the premium you elected to pay. The choices were 75 percent reduction, 50 percent reduction, or no reduction. If you elected 75 percent reduction, the amount of insurance in effect equals your BIA reduced by 2 percent each month until 25 percent of the pre-retirement amount remains. If you elected 50 percent reduction, your BIA reduces by 1 percent of the pre-retirement amount each month until 50 percent of the pre-retirement amount remains. If you elected no reduction, your BIA will not reduce and 100 percent of the pre-retirement amount is payable as a death benefit.

The amount you pay for optional life insurance depends on your age, any additional options you selected, and the rate at which your coverage is reduced once you reach age 65.

- ♦ Option A: Provides \$10,000 in coverage. At age 65, it will automatically reduce by 2 percent per month until it reaches 25% of the pre-retirement amount (\$2,500.00). There is no election for you to make for Option A because there is no cost after age 65.
- Option B and Option C: The choices were full reduction or no reduction of some or all multiples.
 - Under full reduction, the face value of each multiple of Option B and/or Option C reduces by 2 percent per month of the pre-retirement amount for 50 months, at which time this coverage will end. There is no cost after age 65 for full reduction.
 - Under no reduction, the face value of those multiples of Option B and/or Option C coverage will
 never reduce. However, premiums under the no reduction election normally increase upon
 reaching certain age bands.

You may cancel or change from a no reduction election to a full reduction at any time. However, a full reduction election cannot be changed any time to a no reduction election. If you wish to cancel or reduce your FEGLI coverage, please submit a completed SF-2818 to the HR Service Center. You can obtain an SF-2818 from the Office of Personnel Management's website at http://www.opm.gov/forms/pdf fill/sf2818.pdf.

For detailed information please visit the FEGLI Handbook at https://www.opm.gov/healthcare-insurance/life-insurance/reference-materials/handbook.pdf.

RE-EMPLOYED ANNUITANT (REA) PROGRAM

The centralized Reemployed Annuitant (REA) Central Registry is managed by the Bureau of Global Talent Management's Office of Talent Services (GTM/TS).

Annuitants interested in having their name added to the Central Registry should contact the REA Team at <u>TS-REA@state.gov</u>

The central registry may be used within the Department to find potential candidates to fill REA positions. **However, having your contact information added to the registry does not guarantee or imply that you will receive employment**. There are not enough REA positions available to accommodate every annuitant seeking reemployment. Instead, the central registry acts as a database to increase a hiring manager's pool of candidates.

The below resources can be found on the Retirement Network (RNet) website (https://rnet.state.gov) under the section "Reemployed Annuitant (REA) Program."

Document Name	Description				
Fact Sheet	Provides overview and basic information about the program.				
Hours Tracker	Spreadsheet created to help annuitants track the hours worked in a calendar year. You should download the spreadsheet to your computer and enter the appropriate hours each day. Formulas in the spreadsheet automatically add the total hours for each month and display the total hours for the calendar year in red at the top of the spreadsheet.				
Required Skills for Bureaus	Specific skills requested by bureaus. The document only has skills for the bureaus and offices that provided information.				

LIMITS ON REEMPLOYMENT OF ANNUITANTS

If a Foreign Service annuitant is reemployed under a <u>full-time</u> Civil Service, Legislative or Judicial Branch or a Presidential appointment (other than part-time or intermittent, as defined below), payment of the employee's annuity is suspended. At the conclusion of the appointment, payment of the annuity resumes, together with intervening cost of living adjustments (COLAs) applicable during the period of reemployment. Employment in a private company or on a personal services contract (PSC) does <u>not</u> trigger suspension of one's FSPS or FSRDS annuity.

Any Federal agency or branch of government (including the Legislative and Judicial branches) that reemploys an FSRDS or FSPS annuitant must notify the State Department at: HRSC@state.gov or at U.S. Department of State, HR Service Center, Annuitant Services, 1999 Dyess Avenue, Building E, Charleston, SC, 29405. The employing agency must send the HR Service Center a copy of the Notification of Personnel Action (SF-50) and take other appropriate actions, as directed by GTM/RET, including salary reduction.

CAP ON PART-TIME, TEMPORARY, AND INTERMITTENT APPOINTMENTS

In any calendar year, the *sum* of the employee's annuity and salary cannot exceed his/her salary at the time of retirement (not adjusted for inflation), or the full-time salary of the position of reemployment, whichever is higher. Payment of your Foreign Service annuity may be continued, subject to the cap on total compensation in any calendar year when reemployed in Federal service on a part-time, temporary, or intermittent basis.

- An <u>intermittent</u> appointment is an appointment without a regularly scheduled tour of duty. Reemployed annuitants working on a WAE (when actually employed) schedule cannot exceed 1040 hours of work in an appointment year. There are also calendar year salary caps that apply.
- An appointment is considered <u>part-time</u> when the regular tour of duty is less than a full-time appointment of 40 hours per week.
- A <u>temporary</u> appointment is an appointment that is less than permanent, or career, in nature, for a period not in excess of one year.

WHAT'S IN THE CAP

Any annuity payment received, including FSPS annuity supplements, within a particular calendar year is considered income for purposes of calculating how much you can earn when employed as an REA before you exceed your salary/annuity cap (22 U.S. Code § 4064 (b)).

Compensation for this purpose includes annuity payments to a former spouse entitled to benefits under the Foreign Service Act. Annuity payments to the retiree and former spouse are included unless they were scheduled for receipt in a prior or subsequent year. Salary paid before retirement is not included in the cap.

Annuity Cap					
What's included in the cap?	What's excluded from the cap?				
Monthly annuity benefit	Danger pay for foreign assignments and				
FSPS annuity supplement	awards				
Locality pay	 Salary paid before retirement 				
Annuity payments to a former spouse	Lump sum payments of annual leave and				
entitled to benefits under the FS Act*	salary differentials				

^{*} Generally, if the retiree's annuity is suspended and there is a former spouse who is entitled to a pension, the former spouse's pension will be withheld from the retiree's active salary to reimburse the FSRDS or the FSPS fund.

If you are reemployed as an REA and you do not abide by the limits on total compensation, your annuity may be suspended. Thus, it is ultimately your responsibility to monitor your earnings to ensure they do not exceed the limitations. However, within 2 months of meeting a salary limit, ANP is committed to providing you with an audit that lists your salary at retirement, your reemployment salary, and the amount you can earn each calendar year and is e-mailed to affected annuitants. This audit notifies the annuitant of the potentially impending pay cap and the potential for annuity reduction as a result. In addition to the salary/annuity limitation, the hours worked as an REA are part of a separate limitation and are based on the appointment year, not the calendar year.

You can access your REA earnings and leave statements through Employee Express at https://www.employeeexpress.gov on the Internet. You must enter your login ID and a password to access your privacy-protected information. Please note that when asked to select your agency, you should select "Department of State."

IMPORTANT INFORMATION FOR FOREIGN SERVICE ANNUITANTS

REVIEW YOUR DESIGNATION OF BENEFICIARY FORMS

Retirees may complete up to three designations of beneficiary forms for: lump-sum retirement payments, life insurance benefits, and the Thrift Savings Plan (TSP). These forms are the only recognized methods to change beneficiaries – personal wills and last testaments are limited to describing what has been designated on the official forms. Since the most recent designation governs, you are reminded to check your records to make sure that your beneficiary forms reflect your current wishes. For TSP, check the beneficiary listed on your annual TSP account statement. The following chart provides additional information for updating beneficiaries.

Form	Purpose	Obtain Form From	Submit Original Form To
DS-5002 Foreign Service Retirement System	This is the lump sum amount of the annuity payable in the month of death, from the first of the month to the date of death	https://rnet.state.gov Click on "Forms" and then click on "Retiree/Annuitant Information and Forms"	Human Resources Service Center (HRSC) 1999 Dyess Avenue Building E Charleston, SC 29405 For questions, call 1-866-300-7419.
SF-2823 Federal Employees Group Life Insurance (FEGLI) Program	Payment of the annuitant's FEGLI benefits is based on the coverage in effect at death. Assignment of your life insurance to another person, or a valid court order that governs payments of your benefits will have priority over any FEGLI designation of beneficiary form you complete, as explained on the form.	https://rnet.state.gov Click on "Forms" and then click on "Retiree/Annuitant Information and Forms"	Office of Personnel Management (OPM) Retirement Operations Center P.O. Box 45 Boyers, PA 16017-0045 For questions, call 1-888-767-6738. You may also write to OPM or send an email to retire@opm.gov. You must indicate that you are a Foreign Service retiree and include your CSI number.
TSP-3 Thrift Savings Plan	Payment of an annuitant's TSP account balance as of the date of death.	www.tsp.gov	Thrift Savings Plan P.O. Box 385021 Birmingham, AL 35238 For questions, call 1-877-968-3778

If there is no designation of beneficiary form on file, the law provides for automatic payment of benefits by order of precedence: (1) the surviving spouse, (2) the surviving child or children, (3) the parents in equal shares or the entire amount to the surviving parent, (4) the duly appointed executor or administrator of the estate, and (5) the next of kin as determined by the Secretary. Designation of beneficiary forms should be updated as personal situations change.

APPLY FOR A RETIREE ID CARD

If you have business at the Harry S Truman Building (HST) or State Annex 1 (SA-1 Columbia Plaza), you may apply to Diplomatic Security (DS) for a Retiree identification card, which is valid for five years. When holders of Retiree ID cards enter HST or SA-1, they are issued a Retiree Visitor Pass that allows them unescorted access during normal business hours to HST's customer service areas (1st floor and the Foggy Bottom) and the 3rd floor Ralph Bunche Library, SA-1's Office of Retirement (GTM/RET) and the Office of Medical Services (MED) suites and service areas. Retiree ID holders who wish to visit offices in other parts of HST or SA-1 must obtain a visitor badge from a building access receptionist and may then proceed unescorted during normal business hours.

Please forward any inquiries or requests for Retiree ID cards to **gtm_retiree_badge@state.gov** or by calling 202-261-8960 and leaving a message. GTM/RET will coordinate completion of the DS-1838 form with the retiree. GTM/RET will certify the retiree's status, sign it electronically and send the form to the Diplomatic Security Identification Services (DSIS) SA-9 office, after which the retiree may proceed to the SA-9 ID Unit (located at 2025 E Street, NW, Suite SE1051, Washington, D.C.) for their scheduled appointment with DSIS.

Important Note: You must schedule an appointment with DSIS by contacting the ID Customer Service Center via email at idservicescsc@state.gov or by calling (202) 647-1775.

Expired, Lost, or Damaged Retiree ID

Questions related to expired, lost, or damaged IDs and questions about other approved forms of identification should be referred to the DS ID Customer Service Center at 202-647-1775 or 1-888-671-3747 or via email at: idservicescsc@state.gov.

Note: For non-Career Ambassadors, please email Edward Capers, Jr., directly at <u>CapersE@State.gov</u> to coordinate. The same process applies above once you have the form. This can be done at a future date for Ambassadors when in the DC area.

REPORT CHANGES IN MARITAL STATUS

All annuitants (retirees, their survivors, and former spouses) must keep the Department informed of changes in marital status (death of spouse, divorce, or marriage/remarriage) by notifying the HR Service Center and providing appropriate documentation. **Delays in reporting changes in marital status to the HR Service Center will delay, or in some cases permanently prevent, the benefits adjustment.** For example:

- Spouses who divorce may be entitled to continuation of health coverage through the Federal Employees Health Benefits (FEHB) Program.
- An annuitant who had elected a survivor annuity for a spouse and whose marriage terminates by death or
 divorce, may be entitled to an increase in annuity, effective the first of the month after the month in which
 the marriage terminated. If the marriage was terminated by divorce, the former spouse may qualify for
 part of the annuity and/or survivor benefits.
- An annuitant under FSPS who marries after retirement may elect a survivor annuity for his/her spouse, **provided the election is made** using DS 5071 or DS 5072 within two years of marriage. The election of a survivor annuity can be made effective after nine months of marriage, but the reduction in the retiree's annuity becomes retroactive to the commencing date of the annuity *or* the last date a reduction was in effect for a prior spouse.

- Interest on any retroactive reductions is also charged. The retroactive amount is paid by a monthly deduction from the employee's annuity.
- Surviving children who are receiving annuity benefits lose their eligibility for annuity benefits upon marriage, as well as upon reaching age 18, or age 22 if an unmarried, full-time student.
- Loss of annuity entitlement due to remarriage may also affect eligibility for continuation of FEHB.

DISABLED CHILDREN

An annuitant's unmarried child who is incapable of self-support because of a permanent disability that began before age 18 is eligible to receive a life-time survivor annuity and to retain coverage under the FEHB program. Eligibility must be documented by a Certificate of Incapacity issued by the Department of State's Office of Medical Services (MED). That certificate is issued at age 26 to enable the child to continue coverage under a FEHB plan.

If you have an unmarried, permanently disabled adult child aged 26 or older, please e-mail HRSC@state.gov or call 1-866-300-7419 and ask GTM/RET to review your OPF to verify that it contains a Certificate of Incapacity. If it does not, you can send GTM/RET your copy of the Certificate of Incapacity (if you have one) or GTM/RET will direct you to MED's Domestic Programs Division to have a new Certificate of Incapacity issued.

FSPS DISABILITY RETIREMENT

If you retired under a FSPS disability retirement and you are under the age of 62, it is required that you submit the initial Social Security award or denial letter to GTM/RET. If you were awarded Social Security disability benefits and a Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) and is applied to your monthly amount, you must also submit your Social Security COLA notice whenever it increases your monthly social security payment. Failure to do so may result in an overpayment of your Foreign Service annuity.

REPORT DEATHS OF ANNUITANTS, SURVIVORS, AND FORMER SPOUSES IMMEDIATELY

You can help your loved ones by giving them a copy of this information and retaining this document with your insurance policies, retirement records, and other important papers. By doing this, you will provide an invaluable service to your survivors or the executor/personal representative who will handle your estate.

In the event of the death of an annuitant, survivor or former spouse, please immediately notify:

Human Resources Service Center (HRSC)

Phone: 1-866-300-7419 (Toll free)

1-843-308-5539 (Outside the U.S.)

Fax: 1-843-202-3807 E-mail: HRSC@State.gov

Mailing Address: U.S. Department of State

HR Service Center – Annuitant Services

1999 Dyess Avenue, Building E

Charleston, SC 29405

The person reporting the death by telephone, e-mail or letter should include the full name of the deceased annuitant, date of birth, date of death, address, Social Security number and relationship of the person who may be entitled to survivor benefits. The HRSC will then inform the caller of the documents required to confirm eligibility for entitlements and the Office of Retirement (GTM/RET) will calculate any applicable survivor benefit. Annuity Pay Processing (CGFS/ANP) will initiate and process the annuity payments. Please prepare for the possibility of a 60 to 90-day delay in receiving your first annuity payment. The sooner the persons entitled to benefits forward those required documents, the sooner the benefits can be paid. The Department's goal is to issue the first survivor annuity payment within 45 days of receiving the required documentation in the HRSC. However, just as the process of retiring is complicated and takes time, the process of establishing a survivor annuity is complex. Please prepare for a 2 to 3 month gap in annuity payments while the survivor annuity is established.

- Obtain certified copies of the annuitant's death certificate and transmit one with the application for death benefits. Certified copies will also be required for FEGLI, each private insurance policy and any other claims submitted by the survivor, executor, or personal representative. If other documentation is needed, it will be specifically requested. This may include copies of marriage certificates, birth certificates, divorce decrees, death certificates of deceased children or spouses, court orders for name changes, or other documents to establish identity and/or relationship.
- Complete and return the application for death benefits form that the HR Service Center provided to the survivor, beneficiary, executor or personal representative. Once the HR Service Center has received the completed forms and a certified copy of the death certificate, the documentation will be forwarded to the Office of Retirement (GTM/RET) which will confirm eligibility and calculate any applicable survivor benefits. Finally, the Annuity Pay Processing Branch (ANP) will initiate the payments. Please note, a W-4P or W-9 form must be submitted with the application for death benefits package before any payments can be issued.
- File a Claim with Federal Employees Group Life Insurance (FEGLI). If the deceased annuitant had FEGLI coverage, the HR Service Center will certify the date of death and notify the Office of Personnel Management (OPM), the FEGLI administrator. OPM will send the appropriate claim forms and instructions to the designated beneficiary (or beneficiaries) listed in the annuitant's official insurance file. If the survivor has not received the letter of instruction and the claim forms from OPM within five weeks of the date of death of the annuitant, he/she should write directly to: Office of Personnel Management, Attention: Retirement Services, P.O. Box 45, Boyers, PA 16017. Please include the annuitant's full name, the date of birth, the retirement system name (FSRDS or FSPS), and the annuitant's identification number which is prefaced by the letters "CSI-." This annuitant's ID number can be found on the insurance certification document received from OPM after retirement or by contacting the HR Service Center.
- Continue Federal Employees Health Benefits (FEHB) Coverage. Eligible survivors may continue the deceased annuitant's FEHB health insurance coverage provided that:
 - The annuitant was enrolled under self plus one or self and family coverage at the time of death; and
 - At least one family member is entitled to an annuity.
- Return any un-cashed annuity checks to:

U.S. Department of State Global Compensation – Funds Control P.O. Box 150008 Charleston, SC 29415-5008

• Reclamation of Funds:

Payments issued via EFT (electronic funds transfer) past the date of death will be recalled electronically and returned to the Department. Annuity Pay Processing will reconcile the annuity account and determine any applicable payments that are due to the beneficiary.

KEEP YOUR RECORDS UPDATED VIA ANNUITANT EXPRESS

If you have any changes to your annuity account, you will need to provide the new information to the Department of State. The best way to do so is via Annuitant Express on www.employeeexpress.gov, which is available 24/7 from any internet-accessible computer. You can update your annuity account to change your mailing address, direct deposit, federal and state tax withholdings, and financial allotments. Additionally, you can view and print your monthly annuity statements and annual Form 1099-R. Note: You cannot use Annuitant Express to change your state of residence or email address. These changes must be submitted via e-mail (AnnuityPaySupport@state.gov) or mailed to the Annuity Pay Processing Branch (ANP). Email address changes must be submitted on a document with either the annuitants' signature or the POAs (Power of Attorney). When submitting a direct deposit change via email or mail, you must also include either a voided check or an SF-1199 form with appropriate signatures from the banking or financial institutions. You may have up to three allotments. The accounts must be maintained at a domestic financial institution. This does not include charities, garnishments, court orders, union or other organizational dues. Please mail any changes to:

U.S. Department of State Payroll Customer Support/ANP 2010 Bainbridge Avenue North Charleston, SC 29405

Following your retirement, the Office of Personnel Management (OPM) should have mailed you a password to access Annuitant Express. This is not the same account or log-in information that you used as an active employee. To log into Annuitant Express, go to www.employeeexpress.gov and select your Sign-in-Method. After you enter your verification information, you will be asked to enter the security code. The security code will be sent to your current valid email listed in Annuitant Express or, if you don't have an email, the security code will mailed be your current address listed in Annuitant Express and you will have 30 days to use this security code. Enter your Social Security number as your log-in ID and the password you received from OPM. (You can *change* your password the first time you log-in.) When asked to identify your agency, select "Foreign Service Annuitants" not "Department of State" or any other Foreign Affairs agency.

If you did not receive your password or if you forgot your password or login ID, go to the log-in screen of www.employeeexpress.gov and click on "Forgot login ID or password?" Follow the prompts to request a new password or log-in ID from OPM. Your mailing address must match the address on record with the Annuity Pay Processing Branch (ANP). For annuitants with an email address on file with ANP, OPM can email a temporary password and log-in. Your email address must match the one on record with ANP for your temporary password to be emailed.

Reemployed annuitants (WAE) should go to www.employeeexpress.gov and select their Sign-in-Method. After you enter your verification information, you will be asked to enter the security code. The security code will be sent to your current valid email listed in Annuitant Express ending with .gov; or, if you don't have a government email, the security code will be your current address listed in Annuitant Express.

This will provide access to your Earnings & Leave Statements, but not your monthly Annuity Statements. Reemployed annuitants need two separate accounts to access annuity information and active (reemployed annuitant) salary information at the same time.

Annuitants needing assistance using Annuitant Express should contact the Employee Express Help Desk by sending a detailed e-mail message to EEXHelp@opm.gov with the following information: Your name (last, first, middle); your affiliation ("Foreign Service Annuitant"); your daytime phone number; and a detailed description of your problem.

UNDERSTAND THE TAX TREATMENT OF YOUR ANNUITY

If you have tax questions that go beyond the following basic information, please contact the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) or a tax advisor since State Department offices may not give tax advice.

- Income Tax Liability: Foreign Service annuitants and their survivors must pay federal income tax on annuity benefits except for the portion attributable to the mandatory contributions that you made to your retirement system, known as the tax-free portion. Employees who were members of the Foreign Service prior to September 25, 1975, and who retired on disability, are not subject to federal income tax. State and local taxation of federal annuities varies by jurisdiction.
- **Tax-Free Portion:** Because you have already paid taxes on that portion of your annuity attributable to your mandatory contributions, that amount is not subject to further taxation. For those employees who retired in 2012 and going forward, the amount of retirement contributions as well as the taxable amount of the annuity will be provided on the 1099-R. If your retirement date was prior to 2012, you should have received a letter detailing the total amount that you contributed to your retirement system. You can calculate the taxable amount of your annuity each year by plugging the total amount of your retirement contributions into the worksheet included in the instructions to IRS Form 1040 or Form 1040A, or in IRS publication #721, "Tax Guide to U.S. Civil Service Retirement Benefits." Those documents are available at www.irs.gov. Alternatively, you can use the Office of Personnel Management's online calculator at https://apps.opm.gov/tax_calc/index.cfm. Once you have calculated the tax-free portion of your monthly annuity, you can annualize that number to determine the tax-free portion of your annuity during the tax year. The amount you can deduct the first year you are retired will be prorated according to the number of months you are in retirement status. You continue deducting the annualized amount each tax year until you have deducted the full amount that you have contributed to the retirement system. The amount you deduct only changes if a life event, such as death or divorce, changes your provision for a survivor annuity.
- Withholding Taxes: Annuities are subject to mandatory Federal tax withholding. State tax withholding is optional. For more information, contact AnnuityPaySupport@state.gov or call 1-877-865-0760. You may alter your Federal or state withholding rates at any time via the Annuitant Express website at www.employeeexpress.gov. Changing your state of residence cannot be completed using Annuitant Express and must be submitted via e-mail (Annuity Pay Processing Branch (ANP).
- Form 1099-R: Annuitants are sent a 1099-R tax document by mail every year, by January 31. This document contains information on the total amount of annuity payments that you received during the preceding tax year and the amount that was withheld for taxes. Most 1099-R tax documents are also available on the Annuitant Express website at www.employeeexpress.gov after January 31. If you do not have access to a computer or if your 1099-R is not available on Annuitant Express, you may contact Payroll Customer Support at 1-877-865-0760 or AnnuityPaySupport@state.gov.

- Lump-Sum Payments: A lump sum payment for unused annual leave is treated as a salary payment. It is taxable as wages in the tax year during which you receive it. Federal and any state withholding tax will be deducted from your lump-sum payment. Any questions regarding the calculations should be directed to AnnuityPaySupport@state.gov or 1-877-865-0760. Please note the Annuity Pay Processing Branch (ANP) does NOT issue these payments.
- Excess Contributions: For FSRDS members with over 35 years of service, a refund of "excess" contributions made after completing the maximum length of service is not taxable; however, any interest earned on these contributions is taxable in the tax year it is distributed unless you roll it over to a traditional IRA or another qualified retirement plan.
- Thrift Savings Plan (TSP): All withdrawals from your TSP account (except for any Roth TSP amounts) are taxed as ordinary income when you withdraw them, since neither those contributions nor their earnings were included previously in your taxable income. How much and how often you choose to withdraw from your TSP account determines when you must pay income taxes on your withdrawals. Roth TSP contributions and associated earnings are not subject to taxes as long as five years have passed since January 1 of the year you made your first Roth TSP contribution and you are age 59 1/2 or older, permanently disabled, or deceased. For more information, go to www.tsp.gov.

STATE MAGAZINE

State Magazine is a digital-only multimedia publication available online and via mobile app on web-enabled mobile devices. Distribution of a print version of the magazine has been discontinued. The digital publication can be accessed at https://statemag.state.gov/ and through the Apple App Store and Google Play. Readers may direct questions about the publication to statemagazine@state.gov.

FOREIGN SERVICE NATIONAL (FSN) EMERGENCY RELIEF FUND

The Foreign Service National Emergency Relief Fund was established to respond to crises following natural disasters, civil unrest, and targeted attacks or "in the line of duty" incidents. It is one of almost 90 Gift Fund programs managed by the Office of Emergencies in the Diplomatic and Consular Service (M/EDCS) and is one of the two Gift Fund programs that exist solely to assist employees. Funding for this program is not appropriated and is sustained solely by private contributions. The donations are tax deductible and since there are no administrative costs, 100% of all contributions are allocated for disbursement directly to Locally Employed (LE) Staff. Contributions to the Fund can be made by Civil Service, Foreign Service, LE Staff and private sector individuals. Donations can be made via the following:

- Secure on-line electronic donations can be made directly from your bank account or by credit/debit card to www.pay.gov.
- Checks may be sent to the Department's Gift Fund Coordinator's Office M/EDCS, Rm. 7427-B, 2201 C
 Street NW, Washington DC 20520. Please make checks payable to the U.S. Department of State, designation for the "FSN Emergency Relief Fund".
- DOS, LE Staff, and overseas American employees of other federal agencies currently being paid by State can make contributions by payroll deduction.

AMERICAN FOREIGN SERVICE ASSOCIATION (AFSA) Stay with AFSA in Retirement

Become an AFSA member in retirement! While dues are considerably less, you'll continue to receive top member benefits including AFSA's daily Media Digest, *The Foreign Service Journal*, retirement benefits counseling, and invitations to AFSA programs. You will also receive AFSA's bi-monthly Retirement Newsletter and our annual Directory of Retired Members. Your membership also supports AFSA's outreach and advocacy work for the Foreign Service.

Please note, AFSA membership does not simply rollover. To continue being an AFSA member and have AFSA dues automatically deducted from your annuity, you must complete Standard Form 1187A. This form is available by request at: **member@afsa.org**. Retired members can also pay dues annually. To learn more about member benefits and how to join visit: https://afsa.org/retired-membership or email member@afsa.org.

SENIOR LIVING FOUNDATION

By Paula S. Jakub, RHU Vice President, American Foreign Service Protective Association

Executive Vice President, American Foreign Service Protective Association & Executive Director, Senior Living Foundation of the American Foreign Service

As people live longer, they encounter a myriad of challenges, from coping with chronic health issues to meeting the demands of everyday life. Members of the Foreign Service community are no exception. The Senior Living Foundation of the American Foreign Service exists to assist retired Foreign Service annuitants and spouses – including survivors or divorcees – in their later years by providing financial and non-financial assistance.

For more than three decades, the Foundation has built a tradition of taking care of our own. In that time, the Foundation has provided guidance and support to more than 1,700 people and distributed more than \$6 million in grants. This support, available thanks to the generosity of our donors, makes a real difference in the quality of life for this special group of people.

When a member of our community approaches the Foundation, our process is professional, compassionate, and above all, confidential. A social worker with extensive Foreign Service experience reviews each case to determine eligibility for support based on demonstrated need and the Foundation's guidelines. Next they identify the best resources available for the individual.

Some examples of monthly grants include covering the costs of:

- Deductibles and copayments on health coverage;
- Home Health Care expenses;
- Prescription medication costs;

- Assisted Living expenses;
- Basic living expenses such as utility bills; and
- Meal delivery services

Also the Foundation provides some one-time grants. Examples include:

- Professional care manager assessments;
- Durable medical equipment, such as grab bars, walkers and chairlifts
- Medically necessary dental work

Even if a person doesn't need financial assistance, the Foundation can make a difference. Non-financial assistance includes:

- Identifying appropriate home health care services;
- Providing information about assisted living facilities in a retiree's area; and
- Helping a family make long-term planning decisions, often with the assistance of an Aging Life Care Expert familiar with access to local resources.

The Foundation has become a vital part of the Foreign Service family and every member of the Foreign Service should want to share in our important mission of "taking care of our own". We are extremely grateful for the support of so many of you – the grassroots of the Foreign Service. The need for our services will continue to grow as more people experience the hard realities of growing older and economic inflation. We may be able to help you – or someone you know – with information, resources or financial assistance. For more information, please contact:

Senior Living Foundation of the American Foreign Service 1620 L Street NW, Suite 800 Washington, DC 20036 Phone: (202) 887-8170 Fax: (202) 872-9320

E-Mail: info@SLFoundation.org





Thank you for participating in the 2023 CFC!

The Combined Federal Campaign (CFC) makes it easy to support your favorite causes. The CFC has a charity for any cause you want to support.

You will find enclosed the Department of State CFC Annuitant Pledge Form. Please fill out this form and return back to the CFC Processing Center. There are several options for returning the form to the CFC Processing Center. Please select the method that works best for you from the list below. All forms *Must* be returned *No Later Than* January 7, 2024.

WHO: Annuitant, Survivor, Former Spouse

WHAT: Annual opportunity to give in support of your favorite causes

WHY: Local, national and international charities depend on your generosity

HOW: Complete the pledge form and return to one of the locations listed under Return Form below

WHEN: Now through January 7, 2024

Instructions For Filling Out DoS CFC Annuitant Pledge Form

- 1) Fill out form by entering requested data
- 2) Select charity, charity code and monthly contribution amount. Please visit https://cfcgiving.opm.gov/offerings for a full list of eligible charities.
- 3) Calculate sections 1-4 (if applicable)
- 4) Sign under Authorization (signature required for annuity deduction only)
- 5) Return Form To:

Monthly Annuity Deduction
CFC Processing Center
P.O. BOX 7820
Madison, WI
53707-7820

1X Check or Money Order CFC Processing Center P.O. BOX 7820 Madison, WI 53707-7820

For questions regarding CFC contributions contact cfc@state.gov. For questions regarding payroll deductions please contact payhelp@state.gov

"Giving is not just about making a donation. It's about making a difference."



Donor Information



All paper pledge forms should be submitted to the CFC Processing Center at P.O. Box 7820 Madison, WI 53707-7820 no later than January 7, 2024 to allow time for processing. Keep a copy of this form before submitting. CFC organizations do not provide goods or services in whole or partial consideration for any contributions made to the organizations via this pledge. Please fill in with black ink. Sections marked with * are mandatory. For questions regarding CFC charities and contributions, please contact of contact

Primary Email Address * First Name *			Secondary Email Address						
				Last Name *					
Home Address *		City *		State *			Zip Code *		
Social Security Number *		Contribution Type *			1	Primary	Contact Number *		
		O Ar	nuity Deduction	O Check	O Cancel	Donations			
1. Monthly Deduction	2. Total Gift		3. Additional Co	ntributions	4. Charity De				
\$	(multiply amount per deduction by 12 to determine your total annual gift)		(to select more than five charities check this box and use an additional form with new charity code/s and amount/s)		Identify your selected charities by entering their corresponding five-digit code along with the total dollar amount you want each charity to receive. Please visit https://cfcqiving.opm.gov/offerings for a detailed list of eligible charities. The montly deduction in Section 1 must match the total monthly contribution below. If you wish to select more than five charities, please copy the original form and include additional charity contributions.				
Authorization (Annuity Dedu	uction Only)				CFC Ch	arity Code		1X OR Monthly Amount	
I choose annuity deduction as my payment source. I hereby authorize Departr Payroll during 2024 to deduct the amount(s) shown in Section 1 above from m pay on a monthly basis. My deductions will be in effect for one full year starting pay period after January 15 and ending with the last pay period that includes J the following year. I authorize Department of State to pay CFC the total month contribution outlined in Section 1 and Section 4 of this form. I understand that authorization may be revoked by me in writing at any time before it expires. I a acknowledge that I have the right to receive a notification if the amount(s) sche transferred differ(s) from the amount(s) displayed above. If I choose to cancel contributions, I will update the contribution type by checking the cancel donatic submit an updated copy of this form to the CFC Processing Center at P.O. Box Madison, WI 53707-7820.			above from my annual sear starting with that includes January to total monthly derstand that this sit expires. I also mount(s) scheduled use to cancel my moderned donations between at P.O. Box 7820	to be southly x and	TOTAL 1X OR MONTI]]	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	6
Combined Federal Pursuant to 5 U.S. C. 522a(e)(5		er regulatory go	uidance of OPM, is	requesting in	formation or	n this form.	
AUTHORITY: DoS is authorized to collect the EO 13743 (October 13, 2016), permits us to collect your Socia	and 5 CFR 950 (January 1,	sed upor 2017). Ir	n OPM governance a n addition, Executive	nd the authorit Order 9397 (N	y provided in Exec lovember 22, 1943	cutive Order (E s), as amended	O) 12353 (N i by EO 134	March 23, 1982), as amende 78 (November 18, 2008),	ed by
PURPOSE: The information you provide Federal Campaign (CFC); and	is primarily collected and u to make payments to the c	used by D charitable	OoS to accurately red e organizations to w	ceive, process hich you choo	, acknowledge, ar ose to donate. All	nd account for donations to	your dona the CFC are	tion to the Combined anonymous.	
ROUTINE USES: The information we collect frodeduction.	om you may be disclosed a	is a "rout	ine use" to your pay	roll service pr	ovider, if you hav	e chosen to m	iake a recur	rring gift via payroll	
CONSEQUENCES OF FAILING Providing this information, in this gift on your behalf, and we for a payroll deduction.	cluding your SSN, is volunt	arv: how	ever, without your s ition, if you do not p	ignature and provide any of	all of the informa the requested in	tion requeste formation, we	d, it may no may not be	ot be possible for us to male able to process your requ	ke uest

POINTS OF CONTACT

THE RETIREMENT NETWORK (RNET)

RNet is the Office of Retirement's internet site providing information, including reemployment, FEHB comprehensive Foreign Service retirement system information, annuitant forms.

HUMAN RESOURCES SERVICE CENTER (HRSC)

If questions remain after consulting this newsletter and the RNet internet site, you can contact a Department of State human resources specialist. As part of the Department's shared services initiative to improve operations, your initial point-of-contact is the Bureau of Global Talent Management's HR Service Center in Charleston, South Carolina. The HR Service Center can quickly answer most retirement-related inquiries. If a question is complex, it will be forwarded to a GTM/RET retirement counselor for response.

Bureau of Global Talent Management's Human Resources Service Center (HRSC)

Phone: 1-866-300-7419 (Toll free)

1-843-308-5539 (Outside the U.S.)

Fax: 1-843-202-3807

E-mail: <u>HRSC@State.gov</u>

Mailing Address: U.S. Department of State

HR Service Center – Annuitant Services

1999 Dyess Avenue, Building E

Charleston, SC 29405

ANNUITY PAY PROCESSING BRANCH (ANP)

The Annuity Pay Processing Branch (ANP) is responsible for establishing the payment of your Foreign Service annuity and assisting you with keeping your annuity pay record accurate. Additionally, Annuitant Express can be used to update your pay record, access your 1099-R, adjust your Federal and/or state tax withholdings, and view your monthly annuity statements. Inquiries can be e-mailed to AnnuityPaySupport@state.gov or, faxed to 843-308-5471 or you may call us at: 1-877-865-0760.

STATE MAGAZINE AND USAID PUBLICATIONS

The State Magazine and AID Newsletter are digital publications. If you have questions, please contact the publication office directly:

State Magazine GTM/SMG 2401 E Street, NW SA-1, Room L-317 Washington, DC 20522

Email: statemagazine@state.gov
Website: https://statemag.state.gov/

AID Newsletter

Information Center
U.S. Agency for International Development
Ronald Reagan Building
Washington, DC 20523-1000
Email: open@usaid.gov
Website: https://www.usaid.gov/news-

information/newsletter

CONTACT INFORMATION FOR OFFICES AND OTHER AGENCIES

BENEFEDS

• Enrollment in Dental and Vision Insurance

Phone: (877) 888-3337
Website: **www.benefeds.com**

Mail: P.O. Box 797

Greenland, NH 03840-0797

Office of Personnel Management (OPM)

Phone: (888) 767-6738
E-mail: retire@opm.gov
Website: www.opm.gov
Mail: 1900 E Street, NW

Washington, DC 20415

Office of Retirement (GTM/RET)

Foreign Service Retirements

• Survivor and Former Spouse Benefits

Annuitant Adjustments Advisory/Counseling

• Retirement Policy Interpretation/Guidance

Phone: (202) 261-8960
Fax: (202) 261-8988
E-mail: HRSC@state.gov
Website: https://rnet.state.gov
Mail: 2401 E Street NW

Room H-620, SA-1 Washington, DC 20522

American Pay Processing Branch (CGFS/GC/PPR/AME)

• *Issuance of final salary*

Lump-sum payment/annual leaveNotification of retirement to TSP

• W-2, Annual Tax Report/Salary

Consolidated American Payroll Division

Phone: (877) 865-0760

E-mail: AnnuityPaySupport@state.gov

Internal Revenue Service (IRS)

Website: www.irs.gov

Social Security Administration (SSA)

Phone: (800) 772-1213 Website: **www.ssa.gov**

ANNUITY PAY PROCESSING BRANCH (CGFS/GC/PPR/ANP)

• Delay or non-receipt of annuity check

• Address, bank, tax withholding changes

• 1099-R – Tax report FS Annuity

• Annuity verification Letter

REA salary/annuity limitation auditAmount of retirement contributions

• Refund of excess-35 year contributions

Hours: 8 a.m.–5 p.m. EST, Monday – Friday

Toll free: (877) 865-0760 Fax: (843) 308-5471

E-mail: AnnuityPaySupport@state.gov

Mail: U.S. Department of State

Global Financial Services/ANP 2010 Bainbridge Avenue, Building C

North Charleston, SC 29405

Travel and Transportation

• Shipment of household effects

Phone: (202) 472-8480/8481 Fax: (202) 472-8451 Toll free: (800) 424-2947

E-mail: **TransportationQuery@state.gov**

Thrift Savings Plan (TSP)

Toll free: (877) 968-3778
International: (404) 233-4400
Fax: (276) 926-8948
E-mail: thriftline@tsp.gov

Website: www.tsp.gov

Mail: ThriftLine Service Center

c/o Broadridge Processing

P.O. Box 385021

Newark, NJ 07101-1600

For all new annuitants, we must have your personal contact information, including a personal e-mail address and phone number, for timely processing/receipt of your annuity. Also, to enhance our customer service outreach efforts, we would like all annuitants to provide a personal e-mail address and phone number to the Department, including to Payroll Customer Support (<u>AnnuityPaySupport@state.gov</u>).